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FOREWORD BY THE DIRECTOR-GENERAL

1

The 2003/04 Annual Report of the National Treasury is presented at a
time when the country celebrates ten years of democracy and reflects
on the significant social and economic reforms that have guided
transformation.

Government had to meet the challenge of steering an economy
characterised by high inflation, massive public debt and a huge budget
deficit, and one that serviced a fragmented governance structure, into
an economy that could bring macroeconomic stability and sustainable
growth and development. This required a complete overhaul in the way
the economy had to be managed.  The social reconstruction agenda was
paramount. Guided by the principles of the Reconstruction and
Development Programme, the reprioritisation of expenditure was a key
focus of government budgeting.  Social change and development has to
be achieved and had to be sustainable.

While not at the projected levels, our economy continued to grow and
employment showed a slight increase at 1,6 per cent. We also saw
robust growth in investment in physical and human capital. The rand
continued to appreciate in 2002 and 2003 following trends that saw it
emerge from extremely weak levels at the end of 2001. 

Inflation remained within the target range of three to six per cent over
the past year and lower interest rates improved growth prospects. The
past financial year also saw a more expansionary fiscal stance, with
strong growth in social spending and infrastructure investment. Our
public sector borrowing requirement has increased. This is as a result
of the expansionary fiscal stance and increasing capital expenditure by
non-financial public entities.  

This Annual Report reflects the activities of the National Treasury
against the backdrop of our economic performance, fiscal and financial
management. We report on key programmes of the National Treasury,
including the extension of amnesty for undeclared foreign assets
providing relief for the failure to disclose foreign assets in terms of
Exchange Control and tax. We also introduced the Mineral and
Petroleum Royalty Bill currently being revised to accommodate public
comments. 

Our international programme continues to strengthen South Africa's
economic relations across the world and especially on the continent. The National
Treasury has been involved in providing technical support for the creation of the African
Peer Review Mechanism and also hosted a successful conference of African Finance
Ministers in March 2004 to discuss issues of voice and representation of African countries
in the Bretton Woods Institutions.

At the end of 2003, we bid farewell to our former Director-General, Maria Ramos, who

Lesetja Kganyago
Director-General: 
National Treasury

Maria Ramos
Former Director-General: 

National Treasury



National Treasury 2

was appointed as Chief Executive Officer of Transnet. We wish her well in her new
endeavour and express our sincere gratitude for her able leadership and pioneering role
at the helm of the National Treasury.

Lesetja Kganyago
Director-General: National Treasury
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THE MINISTRY

3

As Finance Minister and Executive Authority responsible for the
National Treasury since 1996, Minister Trevor Manuel has provided
consistent leadership and direction to the National Treasury. Under his
guidance, the macroeconomic policies endorsed by Cabinet and
implemented by the National Treasury have brought certainty and
stability to the South African economy. His ability to work closely with
all social partners has helped to develop confidence in this
Government's ability to deliver on its macroeconomic objectives. These
objectives are to reduce poverty and vulnerability through sustained
delivery of social services, while investing in the productive capacity of
our people. Moreover, to meet the country's developmental needs, the
Ministry continues to integrate the activities of Government, business,
labour and civil society.

For the period under review, Minister Manuel was ably supported by
Deputy Minister Mandisi Mpahlwa. We need to thank him for his
leadership and congratulate him on his recent appointment as Minister
of Trade and Industry. Welcome to Jabu Moleketi, our new Deputy
Minister of Finance, who brings a wealth of experience from the
Gauteng Executive Council.  We also need to acknowledge the services
of the previous Director-General, Maria Ramos, who left the Treasury in November 2003.
Her legacy will remain with the Treasury for many years.  

The National Treasury can be measured not only by the vision and drive of its leadership,
but also by the high calibre of its staff. One can confidently state that the Treasury has
become an employer of choice, attracting good quality personnel. Loyalty, commitment,
hard work and team spirit are the foundation blocks upon which the National Treasury
has been built. 

Working in the Ministry of Finance is highly pressurised. A core team of dedicated and
committed individuals ensures that the Minister's and Deputy Minister's operational
needs are met, that information is managed to ensure timely decision making and that
they are able to fulfill their obligations to Cabinet and Parliament.  

Globalisation offers many opportunities and challenges, especially for the developing
world. In representing South Africa, Minister Manuel plays an active role in various
multinational fora such as the International Monetary Fund and the World Bank, the
African Development Bank, Commonwealth Finance Ministers Meetings and theUnited
Nations. Since November 2001, Minister Manuel has occupied the Chair of the
Development Committee, a policy-making committee of the World Bank, where he
champions the views of emerging economies. Last year, Cabinet agreed to extend his
tenure as Chair of the Development Committee for a second term. More recently,
Minister Manuel has been appointed to serve on the Africa Commission, a United
Kingdom initiative on African development. 

Trevor A Manuel, MP
Minister of Finance
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International visits undertaken by the Minister of Finance during the 2003/04
financial year

9 - 18 April 2003 Washington, New York and Boston, USA, to attend the
Spring Meetings of the IMF and World Bank; an
Economic and Social Council Meeting (United Nations)
and to address a seminar at the Kennedy School of
Government.

30 May - 4 June 2003 Addis Ababa, Ethiopia, to attend the Annual Meetings of
the African Development Bank and the Africa Group I
Constituency Meeting.

1 - 3 August 2003 Kampala, Uganda, to attend an Africa Group 1
Constituency Meeting.

6 - 7 August 2003 Gaberone, Botswana, to attend a South African
Development Committee on Finance Ministers' Meeting.

12 - 18 August 2003 Brasilia and Rio de Janeiro, Brazil, to meet with his
counterpart and other Ministers in the new Brazilian
Government. 

18 - 25 September 2003 Dubai, United Arab Emirates, to attend the Annual
Meetings of the World Bank and the IMF.

24 - 30 October 2003 Morelia, Mexico, and Washington and New York in the
USA, to attend the G20 Ministerial Meeting, a special
session of the Big Table in Washington and a High Level
Dialogue on Financing for Development in New York.

7 - 10 March 2004 London and Oxford, United Kingdom, to meet with
Chancellor Gordon Brown and deliver an inaugural
lecture.
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International visits undertaken by the Deputy Minister of Finance
during the 2003/04 financial year

30 May - 3 June 2003 Addis Ababa, Ethiopia, to attend
meetings of the Economic
Commission for Africa and African
Development Bank.

27 - 29 August 2003 Entebbe, Uganda, to attend the
Eastern and Southern Africa Anti-
Money Laundering Group Meeting.

30 August - 5 September 2003 Kuala Lumpur and Bangkok, a state
visit with President Thabo Mbeki to
Malaysia, and to attend a business
meeting with the community of
Thailand.

5 - 25 September 2003 Brunei and Dubai, to attend the
Commonwealth Finance Ministers'
Meeting and IMF/World Bank Annual
Meetings.

24 - 30 October 2003 Sao Paulo, Brazil, to attend the XII
Socialist International Congress with
the President.

14 - 20 December 2003 Marrakech, Morocco, and London, to
attend the Cooperation Conference of
the G77 (Head of Delegation).

Jabu Moleketi
Deputy Minister of Finance

Mandisi Mpahlwa
Former Deputy 

Minister of Finance
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VISION

The National Treasury is the custodian of the nation's financial resources. We hold
ourselves accountable to the nation to discharge our responsibilities professionally and
with humility, and with the aim of promoting growth and prosperity for all.

We aspire to excellence in the quality of our analysis, our advice and the execution of our
financial management responsibilities.  We aim to realise the full potential of South
Africa's economy and people and to mobilise the resources of the state, business
enterprises and the wider community in a partnership of trust and mutual respect. 

MISSION AND OBJECTIVES

The National Treasury aims to promote economic development, good governance, social
progress and rising living standards through accountable, economic, efficient, equitable
and sustainable management of South Africa's public finances.

We endeavour to advance economic growth, broad-based empowerment, progressive
realisation of human rights and the elimination of poverty.  We are responsible for
preparing a sound and sustainable national Budget and an equitable division of resources
between the three spheres of government.

We strive to raise fiscal resources equitably and efficiently and to manage Government's
financial assets and liabilities soundly.

We promote transparency and effective financial management.

VALUES

As custodians of the nation's financial resources, the National Treasury acknowledges the
authority of Parliament through whom we are accountable to the nation.

We value teamwork, sound planning and enthusiasm and strive continually to improve
the quality, accuracy and reliability of our service delivery. 

Our people are our most valued assets. We seek to be an employer of choice, we invest
in the education and training of our staff, we cultivate a learning and consultative
environment, we make use of the best available technological support and we aim to
mobilise the full potential of our people. 

In our dealings with the public and with our colleagues we act transparently and with
integrity, showing respect and demonstrating fairness and objectivity.

In achieving these things, we will honour the faith that the South African public has
placed in us.
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MINISTER'S STATEMENT ON POLICY AND COMMITMENT 

2004 is the year momentous in the history of South Africa. This is our tenth year of
democratic rule and an appropriate opportunity to reflect on our past achievements and
confront the challenges that lie ahead. As in 1994 and 1999, the 2004 election results
confirm the overwhelming support and confidence of the electorate in this Government's
ability to create a better life for all its citizens.   

How the National Treasury manages our public finances is extremely important in our
fight to reduce the levels of poverty and vulnerability. Moreover, the responsibility rests
with Government to ensure that our public spending is both affordable and sustainable.
This Government has therefore not shied away from making difficult policy choices and
tough decisions. Since 1994, successive budgets have progressively extended the
resource envelope devoted to services in poor communities. Spending on education,
training and skills development is a priority and a necessary precondition for addressing
inequality and divisions within our society. Furthermore, our poverty reduction strategy
includes the promotion of work opportunities, creating sustainable communities and
consolidating our social security system. We have delivered and will continue to deliver
affordable housing, access to water and sanitation, health care services and electricity to
the most marginalised sectors of our society.  

From a macroeconomic perspective, reduced inflation and lower interest rates; well-
diversified financial markets; a gradual relaxation of exchange controls; reduced debt
service costs; tax incentives to stimulate investment; healthy public finances; and a
favourable environment for trade and industrial development, are established features of
the South African economy. Having laid these secure foundations, a more expansionary
fiscal policy stance was adopted in 2001. Alongside this, the emphasis in economic policy
has shifted to microeconomic and logistical reforms, encapsulated in the Microeconomic
Reform Strategy, that underpin improved industrial performance and market
development. For the decade ahead, an accelerated pace of growth and development must
be achieved if we are to overcome the divisions between the "two economies" that coexist
in our developing nation.

Over the past decade, we have witnessed the maturing of our intergovernmental fiscal
system. The largest allocation of our nation's resources is channelled through the budgets
of provincial and local government. We are, therefore, mindful of the need for continued
capacity building in respect of human resources and systems to ensure that funds are
properly spent. The staggered implementation of the Municipal Finance Management Act
(56 for 2003), which commences in 2004, will create uniformity, improve financial
management and ensure greater public accountability for funds appropriated at municipal
and town-council level. The challenge ahead is to ensure that Government's objective of
extending basic services to historically unserved communities is achieved. 

Since 1994, South Africa has taken up its rightful place in the global community.
Globalisation offers many opportunities and challenges for emerging economies. We are
active participants in internal fora such as the World Bank, International Monetary Fund,
United Nations and the Organisation for Economic Cooperation and Development. Many
of the policies and initiatives adopted by our Government are in line with the Monterrey
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consensus, building African unity through the New Partnership for Africa's Development
and achieving the objectives of the Millennium Development Goals. South Africa
occupies significant positions in these international fora and we will use our influence to
enhance the voice and representation of developing countries in these fora over the next
five years. 

In terms of public accountability, the role of Parliament and civil society in overseeing
government policy, monitoring spending and measuring public service delivery is
important.  The inclusion of measurable objectives in this year's ‘Estimates of National
Expenditure’, multi-year budgeting and improved financial reporting as required by the
Public Finance Management Act, have provided Parliament with the relevant information
to exercise its oversight role and hold the Executive to account. 

Trevor A Manuel, MP
Minister of Finance

9
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LEGISLATIVE MANDATE

The National Treasury has a legislative mandate to promote the national Government's
fiscal policy framework and the coordination of macroeconomic policy; to coordinate
intergovernmental financial and fiscal relations; manage the Budget preparation process;
and to promote and enforce transparency and effective management in respect of revenue
and expenditure; assets and liabilities; public entities; and constitutional institutions.

Parliamentary Services

The Minister of Finance, as a Member of Parliament, places a high premium on the
Ministry's interaction with Parliament. The Ministry ensures active collaboration with
members of Parliament and with the parliamentary committees on an ongoing basis. Key
to this objective is the Parliamentary Office located in the Ministry.

Parliamentary Services has to foster a transparent and cooperative working environment
with Parliament. It is the representative office of the Minister of Finance at Parliament
and the vehicle through which financial policies and legislation are presented to
Parliament for consideration and approval. 

The Parliamentary Office facilitates the flow of information from the National Treasury
via Cabinet to Parliament. It serves a liaison role by ensuring that parliamentary decisions
are forwarded to the National Treasury and, in this way, policy drafters are kept abreast
of the views of public representatives. The Parliamentary Office is essentially a service
provider to the Minister of Finance, the three departments under his executive authority
(the National Treasury, the South African Revenue Service and Statistics SA) and the two
chairpersons of the respective Finance Committees in Parliament. 

The key functions of Parliamentary Services include:

l Keeping the Minister informed of his parliamentary commitments;
l Ensuring that presentations and speeches are prepared;
l Accompanying the Minister and his senior officials to meetings and parliamentary

sittings;
l Liaising with political parliamentary structures, for example, the Chief Whip's Office

and the Office of the Leader of Government Business on behalf of the Minister;
l Providing the Minister with parliamentary procedural support;
l Facilitating the drafting of answers to questions posed to the Minister for submission

to Parliament;
l Advising the parliamentary committee chairpersons on the legislative programme;

and
l Ensuring that legislation is placed on the committee agenda timeously and that senior

officials brief the committee to facilitate meaningful deliberations on legislation,
policy documents and areas of economic interest that the committee wishes to focus
on.
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LEGISLATION ENACTED

The National Treasury tables legislation, which can be categorised as follows, in
Parliament annually:

l Legislation conceptualised and prepared in-house;
l Legislation prepared by such regulatory bodies as the Financial Services Board and

the South African Reserve Bank, with National Treasury providing policy direction;
and

l Tax legislation prepared jointly with the South African Revenue Services. The
National Treasury provides policy direction.

The following is a list of legislation tabled in Parliament during the 2003/2004 financial
year:

1. Pensions (Supplementary) Act, (8 of 2003)
Introduced as Pensions (Supplementary) Bill [B11-2003]
Assented to on 23 April and published in the Gazette on 30 April 2003

2. Exchange Control Amnesty and Amendment of Taxation Laws Act, (12 of
2003)
Introduced as Exchange Control Amnesty and Amendment of Taxation Laws Bill
[B26-2003] 
Assented to on 30 May and published in the Gazette on 31 May 2003

3. Bophuthatswana National Provident Fund Act Repeal Act, (13 of 2003)
Introduced as Bophuthatswana National Provident Fund Act Repeal Bill [B13-2003]
Assented to on 14 June and published in the Gazette on 18 June 2003

4. Sefalana Employee Benefits Organisation Act Repeal Act, (14 of 2003)
Introduced as Sefalana Employee Benefits Organisation Act Repeal Bill [B14-2003]
Assented to on 14 June and published in the Gazette on 18 June 2003

5. Insurance Amendment Act, (17 of 2003)
Introduced as Insurance Amendment Bill [B52-2003]
Assented to on 16 July and published in the Gazette on 23 July 2003

6. Appropriation Act, (18 of 2003)
Introduced as Appropriation Bill [B8-2003]
Assented to on 16 July and published in the Gazette on 23 July 2003

7. Banks Amendment Act, (19 of 2003)
Introduced as Banks Amendment Bill [B15-2003]
Assented to on 30 July and published in the Gazette on 5 August 2003

8. Special Pensions Amendment Act, (21 of 2003)
Introduced as Special Pensions Amendment Bill [B35-2002]
Assented to on 1 October and published in the Gazette on 7 October 2003
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9. Financial and Fiscal Commission Amendment Act, (25 of 2003)
Introduced as Financial and Fiscal Commission Amendment Bill [B21-2003]
Assented to on 12 October and published in the Gazette on 17 October 2003

10. Special Pensions Second Amendment Act (30 of 2003)
Introduced as Special Pensions Second Amendment Bill [B3-2003]
Assented to on 7 November and published in the Gazette on 12 November 2003

11. Government Employees Pension Law Amendment Act, (35 of 2003)
Introduced as Government Employees Pension Law Amendment Bill [B45-2003]
Assented to on 7 November and published in the Gazette on 12 November 2003

12. Adjustments Appropriation Act, (37 of 2003)
Introduced as Adjustments Appropriation Bill [B69-2003]
Assented to on 4 December and published in the Gazette on 8 December 2003

13. Pensions Second (Supplementary) Act, (39 of 2003)
Introduced as Pensions Second (Supplementary) Bill [B59-2003]
Assented to on 10 December and published in the Gazette on 15 December 2003

14. Revenue Laws Amendment Act, (45 of 2003)
Introduced as Revenue Laws Amendment Bill [B72-2003]
Assented to on 17 December and published in the Gazette on 20 December 2003

15. Local Government: Municipal Finance Management Act, (56 of 2003)
Introduced as Local Government: Municipal Finance Management Bill [B1-2002]
Assented to on 9 February and published in the Gazette on 13 February 2004

16. Drought Relief Adjustments Appropriation Act, (4 of 2004)
Introduced as Drought Relief Adjustments Appropriation Bill [B5-2004]
Assented to on 30 March and published in the Gazette on 31 March 2004

17. Division of Revenue Act, (12 of 2004)
Introduced as Division of Revenue Bill [B4-2004]
Assented to on 30 March and published in the Gazette on 31 March 2004
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ACCOUNTING OFFICER'S OVERVIEW

In preparing this Annual Report, the National Treasury undertook an examination of
service delivery results for the period covered by its Strategic Plan for 2003 - 2006 and
by the 2003 ‘Estimates of National Expenditure’. This section provides an overview of
the key challenges that the Treasury set for itself in the 2003 Strategic Plan and highlights
its major achievements.

The Annual Report fulfils three objectives. Firstly, it provides an account of our
achievements in line with the measurable objectives and output targets set out in the
Strategic Plan. Secondly, it shows, through the audited financial statements, how
resources appropriated by Parliament appropriated for the 2003/04 financial year have
been utilised in support of the Treasury's legislative mandate.  Finally, it provides an
account of the challenges that are likely to impact on future plans and resource
allocations.

As an ongoing objective, the National Treasury has committed itself to fiscal and
budgetary reform aimed at promoting sustainable growth and development, reducing
poverty, enhancing budgetary transparency and improving financial management. The
formulation of a three-year budget framework – the Medium-Term Expenditure
Framework (MTEF) introduced in 1998 – and the introduction of the Public Finance
Management Act (PFMA) in 2000, provided a firm foundation for the objectives set for
2003. Critical to budget and fiscal reforms have been the alignment of policy priorities,
departmental plans and available resources. Through ongoing advice and support to
departments and agencies, the overall quality of budgeting and financial management
improved. In particular, improvements to measurable objectives of spending programmes
have supported better allocation decisions and added to the coverage of service delivery
commitments tabled by departments in the ‘Estimates of National Expenditure’, thereby
aiding Parliament in its oversight role. 

Improved transparency and comprehensiveness of budgets for national and provincial
departments took a further step forward with the finalisation of the ‘New Economic
Reporting Format and Standard Chart of Accounts’ at the end of March 2003. Through
the collaborative efforts of the Accountant-General and the Budget Office, the new format
was implemented successfully in the 2004 Budget.  

Significant progress has been made in public sector financial management and
accounting. A key objective set for the 2003/04 financial year was the implementation of
improved formats for financial reporting by national and provincial government and the
migration towards Generally Recognised Accounting Practices (GRAP). This was
finalised at the end of March 2004 together with enhancements in accounting policies.

The publication of the 2003 ‘Intergovernmental Fiscal Review’ once again provides a
consolidated overview of provincial and local funding of basic and social service
delivery. The Review shows that provincial budgets reflect a strong alignment with
national priorities and a commitment to sustainable service delivery. The enactment of the
Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA) in the first half of 2004 provides the legal
basis for modernising budgeting and financial management, and forms an integral part of
the broader local government reform agenda.
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The provision of services in Government will benefit from the promulgation of the
‘Supply Chain Management Framework’ in December 2003. In line with provisions in
the PFMA and MFMA, responsibility and accountability for the procurement of goods
and services will progressively be devolved to accounting officers. 

Our ability to increase overall public spending over the past decade is largely the benefit
of having put in place the correct macroeconomic fundamentals. In 2003, a total of R105
billion in additional resources was added to baseline budgets in support of new spending
priorities. While increases in expenditure have largely funded the rapid expansion in
social spending, budget policy will focus increasingly on infrastructure investment and
human resources development. Ensuring the correct balance in budget policy also
includes strengthening the macro-micro linkages in the South African economy. In this
regard, greater attention has been focused on studying the microeconomic constraints in
our economy that hamper growth, and collaborating with other departments in reviewing
utilities and their price-setting mechanisms in the economy, given their impact on the
general price level. 

The Strategic Plan that covered the 2003/04 financial year identified efficient public
sector debt management as a priority for the National Treasury. A key objective of our
debt management strategy is to ensure that Government's budget deficit is financed at the
lowest possible cost and risk levels, which means borrowing in domestic and foreign
markets, ensuring continued access to both markets and enhancing their liquidity through
the issue of tradable instruments. The revised net borrowing requirement for 2003/04 of
R36,5 billion was successfully financed through the issuance of domestic short-term and
long-term loans, foreign loans and changes in cash and other balances.

The finalisation of the restructuring process and absorption of staff into the new structure
of the National Treasury was the key focus of the human resources management strategy
for 2003/04. Complementing the new structure were the development and
implementation of new performance management and personnel development systems,
which entailed finalising performance agreements and the ongoing evaluation and
training of staff at all levels.

As an institution tasked by the PFMA with the responsibility for financial and fiscal
matters, the National Treasury is in a much stronger position to tackle the strategic
objectives that it has set for itself over the next five years. These include, among others:
the promotion of sustainable growth and work opportunities; the optimal allocation and
utilisation of resources; and maintaining of macroeconomic stability.

The National Treasury Annual Report for 2003/04 gives a detailed account of the
progress we have made towards achieving our measurable objectives and output targets.
More importantly, this Annual Report allows us to reflect on our past performance with
a view to improving our contribution towards our objectives.
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PROGRAMME 1

ADMINISTRATION
Purpose: To provide strategic management and administrative support to the National
Treasury, giving political and managerial leadership to the work of the Department. 

Measurable objective: The programme aims to provide an effective management and
administrative support service to the core business divisions within National Treasury
through continuous refinement of organisational policy and procedures in line with the
requirements of the public service, and to ensure compliance with applicable legislation
and appropriate best practices. 

The programme is divided into four subprogrammes:

l The Ministry provides for the Ministerial Office of the Ministry of Finance and
includes the Office of the Minister and parliamentary and ministerial support
services.

l The Deputy Minister subprogramme provides for the Office of the Deputy Minister
of Finance and related support services.

l The Management subprogramme provides for the Office of the Director-General and
related support services.

l Corporate Services supports the administration and smooth running of the
Department.

The Corporate Services division manages the Administration programme. The division is
responsible for financial management and administration within the National Treasury
and aims to create a productive and creative working environment that enhances
departmental efficiency.

The division consists of four units (Human Resources Management; Financial
Management; Legal Services; and Communications and Information Technology) that
provide the backbone support-service operations to the core business of the National
Treasury.  

Service Delivery Objectives and Indicators

Recent outputs

The Financial Management unit (comprising Financial Administration and Procurement)
is focused on maximising compliance with all relevant financial statutes and regulations,
the most important of which is the Public Finance Management Act (1 of 1999) (PFMA),
and providing excellent service to its customers, both internally and externally. The
Department has again received an unqualified audit report for the 2004 financial year.
Further information on this unit's work is detailed in the Management Report.

Procurement Reform – On 10 September 2003, Cabinet approved the adoption of the
'Policy to Guide Uniformity in Procurement Reform Processes in Government' that sets
out the direction that Government is moving towards in the implementation of supply
chain management. Accounting officers are required to establish and implement a supply
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chain management function, located within the Chief Financial Officer's structure, to
promote sound financial management and uniformity. The ‘Regulatory Framework for
Supply Chain Management’ was promulgated on 5 December 2003. This Framework
serves as a formal requirement to accounting officers to ensure the implementation of the
supply chain management process as an integral part of their financial systems and to
develop and implement an effective and efficient supply chain management system.

As one of the pilot departments for the new procurement framework, the National
Treasury has already made progress in this area. The Department's procurement function
is located within the Chief Financial Officer's structure. The ‘Accounting Officer's
Procurement Procedures’ have been developed and implemented and contain
departmental procurement procedures. An established Accredited Procurement unit is in
operation, and the Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act and Regulations have
been fully implemented.

The Department initiated processes to review its current procurement policies and
procedures to ensure alignment with the Regulatory Framework.

Information Technology – The restructuring of the unit has proved to be very successful,
with valuable input obtained from all stakeholders. As a result, the Information
Technology unit aligned itself with the strategic direction of the National Treasury and
placed strong emphasis on service delivery to all clients. A more efficient organisational
structure for the unit has been drafted and is in the process of being finalised. The new
structure will ensure that the best services are delivered to clients, both internally and
externally, when and where required.

In-house applications have been developed that have proved to assist National Treasury
staff members in automating daily tasks. The establishment of several websites for
components within the National Treasury has been completed with great success. 

Up-times have been maximised through the use of effective anti-virus strategies, which
have prevailed through several virus attacks. System disaster recovery has also been put
to the test, resulting in minimal disruptions for the user base. 

A new and improved service desk is being established that will improve response times
to IT enquiries. It is envisaged that the service desk will be expanded to include all
elements of corporate service functions. 

Communications – The Communications unit provides a strong media liaison service to
the Ministry and the Department and manages the flow of information to both internal
and external stakeholders. In doing so, the unit aims to keep the public informed about
the work of the National Treasury by strategically managing the media profile of the
Ministry and the Department. The Communications unit structure has been rolled out,
with positions filled in resource and information management; project and events
management; and internal communications. Major media events include the National
Budget tabled in Parliament, the Medium-Term Budget Policy Statement, and the annual
meetings of the International Monetary Fund (IMF) and the World Bank. The unit
participates actively in various intergovernmental communications fora. 
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Security and Facilities Management – During the 2003/04 financial year, the Security and
Facilities Management unit was faced with various challenges from both internal and
external working environments. All prescripts and standards set by national institutions
such as the National Intelligence Agency (NIA), the South African Police Service (SAPS)
and the South African National Archives, were enforced. Security systems
accommodating the security challenges of an open plan office environment and meeting
the security standards of the NIA and the SAPS were designed and implemented. An open
plan office environment yields a number of benefits, such as information flow
improvement, faster service delivery and teamwork, but it poses a range of security
challenges. From a security perspective, an open plan office environment is viewed as a
security breach. Among others, it increases vulnerability of property and information. 

Some of the activities of the Security and Facilities Management unit included:  

l Installation of an electronic security system
During 2002 and 2003, an advanced electronic security system that consists of access
control, asset control and surveillance camera systems, was installed. This assisted in
monitoring and securing both buildings occupied by the National Treasury and their
surrounds. 

l Security clearances for employees within the National Treasury
Employees who should be vetted, as well as their level of security clearance, were
identified. These employees completed security clearance forms, which were
forwarded to the NIA. Considerable progress was made in complying with the
‘Minimum Information Security Standards Policy’.

Legal Services is tasked with the responsibility of providing a comprehensive and diverse
legal support service to the Minister, Deputy Minister and the National Treasury.  These
services include the provision of legal support in respect of a wide range of corporate law
issues, drafting and amendments of legislation, as well as management of litigation
brought by and against the Minister. Some of the services included:

l Providing legal advice on international bond issues, such as liaising with
international attorneys on the Security Exchange Commission (New York).

l Providing legal service on the RSA Retail Bond launched in 2004.
l Providing legal advice on money market issues (dematerialisation of money markets)

and primary dealer matters.
l Providing legal advice on a number of agreements, including the agreement between

the Reserve Bank, the Corporation for Public Deposits (CPD), the provinces and the
National Treasury on opening an investment account with the CPD and the use of the
central banking system operated by the Reserve Bank.  This primarily gives the
provinces an opportunity to invest with the CPD.

l Providing legal advice and drafting the necessary Executive Acts of the President on
the assignment of the Transkei Development Reserve Fund Act (3 of 1964) to the
Province of the Eastern Cape under item 14 of Schedule 6 to the Constitution of the
Republic of South Africa Act (108 of 1996).

l Providing comments on a number of Bills introduced in Parliament.  

PROGRAMME 1
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l Successfully presenting to the National Council of Provinces (NCOP) the Financial
and Fiscal Commission Amendment Act (25 of 2003) that clarifies the role of the
Financial and Fiscal Commission (FFC) when functions or powers are transferred or
assigned between spheres of government. 

l The past year saw the litigation section extremely active in a variety of cases. All the
court challenges handled by the component were defended successfully or settled out
of court in the best interest of the Government. The most notable were:

Ecaar and Another / President of the Republic of South Africa and Another
Primavera Construction / Government of the Republic of South Africa

Human Resources Management – An important element of the National Treasury
organisational environment was the appointment of a new Director-General and three
new Deputy Directors-General. The new Director-General has an opportunity to build on
the foundation of a strong National Treasury team and to build a management team that
will take the Department into the next decade.

With the major restructuring of the National Treasury completed in 2003/04, Human
Resources continued to roll out the filling of the vacant posts throughout the organisation.  

The National Treasury's Human Resources Management team values teamwork, sound
planning and enthusiasm and always strives to improve performance. Respect for and
investment in our staff is an important part of our values. 

In 2003/04, considerable effort went into developing and implementing improved human
resources processes, procedures and systems. Key among these was the implementation
of new performance management and personal development systems, ensuring that all
employees have performance agreements and that further training and development are
provided at all levels. The recruitment, selection and placement function made sure that
critical core skills for the National Treasury were attracted to the Department.  

The financial year 2003/04 was also marked by the implementation of the ‘Education,
Training and Development Strategy’ to enhance employees' skills at all levels. That
included the implementation of mandatory programmes, including leadership;
management and supervisory development programmes; and a capacity-building
internship programme.

Over the next five years, the Human Resources Management unit intends developing and
implementing a customer charter aimed at improving the unit's performance and service
delivery by further fine-tuning procedures, processes and systems. This will also include
benchmarking exercises to ensure that the human resources function keeps abreast with
the latest developments and international best practices in the human resources field.
Legislative compliance with the requirements of all relevant legislation continues to be
the main focus of this unit.



Annual Report 2003/200419

Se
rv

ic
e 

D
el

iv
er

y 
A

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t

Pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

1:
  A

dm
in

is
tr

at
io

n 

PROGRAMME 1



National Treasury 20



Annual Report 2003/200421

Purpose: To provide for professional advice and support to the Minister of Finance on
economic and fiscal policy, international financial relations, financial regulation, tax
policy, intergovernmental financial relations, public finance development and the
management of the annual budget process. 

Measurable objective: The programme aims to ensure sound economic, fiscal, financial
and tax policies; an equitable division of revenue between the national, provincial and
local spheres of government; and coherent and well-balanced departmental plans and
budgets.

These functions are organised into four separate subprogrammes:

l Public Finance is responsible for economic and financial advice on social, economic,
administrative and protection services, and for the Treasury's relations with other
national departments. A Technical Assistance Unit, co-funded by the European
Union, supplements these activities through project management and capacity-
building support for reconstruction and development projects.

l The Budget Office provides fiscal policy advice; oversees the national budget
process; coordinates international technical assistance and donor finance; supports
public-private partnerships (PPPs); and compiles the public finance statistics.

l Intergovernmental Relations coordinates fiscal relations between national, provincial
and local government and promotes sound provincial and municipal financial
management.

l Economic Policy is responsible for macroeconomic analysis and policy advice; the
management of international financial relations; tax policy analysis; and financial
sector policy advice. The division also coordinates its activities with the Reserve
Bank on the supervision and regulations of banking and exchange control, the
Financial Services Board (FSB) in relation to non-banking financial services, and the
Financial Intelligence Centre (FIC) in relation to anti-money-laundering measures
and combating the financing of terrorism. 

Service Delivery Objectives and Indicators

Recent outputs

Budget Office

Fiscal Policy plays a leading role in monitoring economic and fiscal trends and advising
the Minister of Finance on fiscal policy options and the budget framework.

Much of the unit's work is focused on the annual 'Budget Review', the 'Medium-Term
Budget Policy Statement' and inputs to the deliberations of the Ministers' Committee on
the Budget. In 2003/04, the section's staff complement was seven, including units
responsible for infrastructure finance, public service personnel finance and fiscal
analysis.

PROGRAMME 2

ECONOMIC PLANNING AND BUDGET MANAGEMENT
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Policy advice and analysis over the past year focused on the following:

l Public service remuneration issues, including options for extending medical scheme
membership, pay progression and personnel mobility;

l Capital spending plans of government departments, provinces and public entities;
and improved budgeting and planning processes for infrastructure investment and
maintenance;

l Fiscal sustainability, debt finance and budget deficit trends; and
l The contribution of fiscal policy and the budget to economic growth and

development.

The Fiscal Policy team is extensively involved in interdepartmental budgetary and policy
consultation, including support for the Department of Public Service and Administration
(DPSA) relating to public service wage bargaining issues, liaison with the Department of
Trade and Industry on critical infrastructure planning and budgeting, and participation in
the National Economic Development and Labour Council (NEDLAC) Public Finance
Chamber.

For the year ahead, infrastructure investment and improved coordination between
economic and fiscal policy reforms will remain priority focus areas.

The Medium-Term Expenditure Planning team comprised 11 staff members in 2003/04.
Much of the team's work is focused on the coordination of the budget process that
culminates in the Medium-Term Expenditure Committee's review of departmental budget
submissions and preparation of the annual 'Estimates of National Expenditure'.

Key activities over the past year included:

l Support for national departments' refinement of “measurable objectives” to
accompany expenditure estimates for the main subdivisions of parliamentary
appropriations;

l Further improvements in the ‘Treasury Guidelines’ to departments for preparing
budget submissions and published budget documents;

l Participation in a workgroup on Performance Information, formed to prepare a
framework to guide performance reporting across Government, and including the
National Treasury, the Auditor-General and the DPSA;

l Collaboration with the Presidency and other central administration departments in
developing an approach to medium-term strategic planning, and improved
monitoring and evaluation of public service delivery; and

l Compilation of policy options and spending reviews to assist the Ministers'
Committee on the Budget in its assessment of medium-term expenditure priorities.

South Africa's approach to expenditure planning and budget coordination has attracted
considerable international interest.  In 2003/04, consultations on budget reform issues
were held with visitors from Zimbabwe, Pakistan and the Republic of China, and the
Expenditure Planning team participated in a conference in Mozambique on the Medium-
Term Expenditure Framework (MTEF). A conference on budget reforms and expenditure
planning will be held in 2004 with a view to sharing experience with other African
countries and international experts, and exploring opportunities for further collaboration.
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The International Development Cooperation (IDC) unit, is responsible for the
establishment of an effective and efficient policy framework and management system to
deal with Official Development Assistance (ODA) to South Africa. Its work is focused
primarily on ensuring ODA, which totals around R2 billion per annum.

IDC has embarked on an extensive ODA management improvement programme,
comprising the following core initiatives:

l The development of a policy framework and procedural guidelines for the
management of ODA to South Africa.  The guidelines have been approved by
Cabinet and form the basis for ODA management in South Africa.

l Enhanced ODA coordination, both at macro and implementing-agency level.
Networks of coordination, driven by South African institutions responsible, are being
established.

l ODA management capacity building, consisting of both formal training at
implementing-agency level, and strategic engagement around ODA management issues
with core stakeholder groupings (e.g. national and provincial ODA coordinators;
development counsellors; and Chief Financial Officers).  All such capacity-building
and strategic engagement processes have been established successfully.

l Enhanced ODA information management through the establishment of a central
ODA management information system – the Development Cooperation Information
System (DCIS).  This is a key initiative in support of enhanced South African ODA
ownership, accountability and transparency.  The DCIS is now operational and can
be accessed via the National Treasury website, or directly at www.dcis.gov.za.
Further systems development is ongoing.

l Enhanced regional/trilateral cooperation.  Numerous regional cooperation initiatives,
built on South African development cooperation successes, have been launched.

l Contributing to ODA reform in line with internationally agreed policy principles and
strategies, such as the harmonisation and alignment of aid, recipient empowerment
and institutional reform.  This has been a central element in IDC's engagement with
its development cooperation partners during the past year.

The Public Finance Statistics team had a staff complement of 11 at the end of 2003/04.
The work of the team focuses mainly on the production of appropriately classified fiscal
data for the publications of Treasury in support of the PFMA and for submission to the
International Monetary Fund (IMF) in terms of international agreements.

The development of the ‘New Economic Reporting Format and Standard Chart of
Accounts’ was completed during 2003/04 and a detailed classification guide was
developed to assist departments in the interpretation of the new classification format. All
national and provincial departments used this this for the preparation of the 2004 Budget,
and the Chart of Accounts, supporting the new budget format, was activated on 1 April
2004. The new format will improve the process of data extraction and the quality of data
available for analysis purposes, and will enhance accountability and consistency in the
financial data produced by departments. It is fully compliant with the Government
Finance Statistics standards set by the IMF.

PROGRAMME 2
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The budget accounts currently cover the national and provincial spheres and some public
entities of national departments. The aim is to eventually include data on all the extra
budgetary activities of Government into the budget documentation, thereby improving
transparency and ensuring publication of a full set of accounts for general Government.
In the 2004 Budget, a total of 52 entities were included, representing an 18 per cent
coverage of the accounts of public entities, compared with a target of 10 per cent for
2003/04.

The work of the Public Finance Statistics team is organised into three areas:

l National statistics introduced the new economic reporting format, has been a key
focus area during 2003/04. Training was provided to about 1 400 national and
provincial officials and a website was implemented to provide assistance and respond
to classification queries. A classification committee has been established.  Progress
has also been made with classification and reporting on departmental revenue. 

l Provincial statistics maintained a database of provincial finance statistics, providing
source information for the 'Intergovernmental Fiscal Review' and budget-related
publications.  Liaison with provincial treasuries and the training of departmental
officials on the new reporting format contributed to its successful implementation in
provincial budgets for 2004/05.  A budget analysis tool has been developed to assist
in evaluating and benchmarking provincial department budgets and accounts.

l General government statistics made further progress in extending budget coverage
to include public entities and prepare for consolidated general government accounts.
Work over the past year focused on the registration and classification of entities and
support for a joint review of the governance and accounting arrangements of national
non-business entities. An analysis of transfers to public entities has been completed
and social security fund data has been reviewed and converted to cash accounts for
the 2004 'Budget Review'. Following data quality assurance reviews, 52 entities
(including 25 sector education and training authorities) were included in the 2004
'Estimates of National Expenditure'.

The Public Finance Statistics team is an active participant in the current review of the
governance of public entities, and liaises closely with the South African Reserve Bank
(SARB), Statistics SA, the Auditor-General, the Accountant-General, provincial
treasuries and other branches of the National Treasury on the quality, integrity and
availability of public finance statistics.

The Public-Private Partnership (PPP) unit supports national and provincial
infrastructure and service delivery projects involving long-term commitments and
substantial risk sharing with private parties. The unit oversees compliance with relevant
Treasury Regulations and provides critical technical support to departments that
undertake PPP ventures. This initiative has benefited from USAID and UK Department
for International Development technical support, and from a training and capacity-
building partnership with the National Business Initiative. The PPP unit comprised 14
staff members in March 2004.

A highlight of the past year was the finalisation of the Head Office accommodation
project for the Department of Trade and Industry – a 25-year agreement with the
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Rainprop Consortium that brings the full family of institutions that report to the Minister
of Trade and Industry into an integrated campus with a complete range of associated
services.

Other projects completed, or near completion, included:

l The Chapman's Peak Drive toll road;
l The State Vaccine Institute equity partnership for the Department of Health;
l Information systems for the Department of Labour; 
l The Humansdorp District Hospital upgrading and co-location;
l A five-year fleet management contract for the Eastern Cape Department of Transport;
l The Universitas and Pelonomi Hospitals co-location for the Free State Department

of Health;
l The Cradle of Humankind Interpretation Centre Complex;
l A five-year fleet management contract for the Northern Cape Department of

Transport; 
l Head office accommodation for the Department of Education;
l Social grants payments for the Free State province;
l Pharmaceutical management and distribution for the Eastern Cape Health

Department;
l Fleet management services for the Free State province; and
l The Hermanus and Swellendam Hospital co-location projects.

A feasibility study is under way for the Dube Trade Port (airport relocation) in KwaZulu-
Natal.  Extensive further work has been done on the design, feasibility and affordability
of the Gauteng rapid rail link project.

The PPP unit combines legal, financial, economic and technical skills in offering a
professional, multidisciplinary service to departments to procure sustainable partnerships
that are affordable to Government, provide value-for-money to the public and are
attractive to the private sector.  Responsibilities and activities span policy and regulatory
advice, training and technical assistance. A comprehensive 'PPP Guideline Manual' has
been developed to assist departments throughout the PPP project life-cycle, and
'Standardised PPP Provisions' were published for use in projects in March 2004,
providing draft text and proposals on a wide range of technical, legal, financial and
administrative aspects of PPP design and documentation.

The PPP unit has introduced a Project Development Facility, providing limited financial
assistance for project preparation costs of approved projects.

As of December 2004 the unit will also assist municipalities that undertake PPPs. Further
efforts will also be devoted to the quality and accessibility of PPP documentation and
guidelines in the years ahead.

Public Finance

The Economic Services team supports the planning and budget management of the
Departments of Agriculture; Land Affairs; Environmental Affairs and Tourism;
Communications; Housing; Minerals and Energy; Transport; Trade and Industry; and

PROGRAMME 2
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Water Affairs and Forestry.  The team comprises 15 staff members, including an advisor
seconded from the UK Treasury and an Overseas Development Institute fellow.

During the 2003/04 year, policy analysis and advice focused on the following:

l Spatial policies: Government's housing, transport and infrastructure planning
responsibilities need to be better coordinated. The idea is to improve the conditions
of human settlements across the country by ensuring good linkages between human
settlements and areas of economic activities as a means of creating viable
communities. A social housing policy is now in place. Several PPP housing projects
are also under way. The reconfiguration of the subsidised bus system (through the
revision of escalation factors in bus contracts) resulted in material savings for the
fiscus and opportunities of expansion for subsidised bus services to previously
unserved areas.  The Treasury also co-financed a study on Township Housing
Markets, aimed at identifying barriers to realising the full value and potential of
housing assets for township residents. 

l Restructuring of the Post Bank: With assistance from the Legal unit and the
Financial Regulations unit, progress has been made in drafting a memorandum of
understanding between the Minister of Communications and Minister of Finance for
restructuring the Post Office, putting the Post Bank on a sound financial footing and
establishing appropriate governance arrangements. 

l Policy evaluation framework: Guidelines and a methodology for analysing and
evaluating policies have been prepared with a view to improving policy review and
planning processes, and supporting the policy-related work of national and
provincial treasuries.  

l Agricultural Insurance scheme: Comprehensive commentary has been provided to
the Department of Agriculture on a proposed insurance scheme for the agricultural
sector.

l Land reform: Recognising the critical importance of land reform and associated
support for emerging farmers, the Treasury commissioned the Human Sciences
Research Council (HSRC) to do an evaluation of the Land Reform for Agricultural
Development Programme (LRAD).  Options for improving the implementation of
the Programme and ensuring the sustainability of land reform, taking into account
budgetary and other resource constraints, are under discussion with the Departments
of Agriculture and Land Affairs.  Drawing in part on this work, a conditional grant
to underwrite post-settlement support of emerging farmers by provincial agriculture
departments was introduced in the 2004 Budget. Consultation with World Bank
experts also proved helpful, drawing attention, in particular, to the need to remove
barriers to the subdivision of agricultural land and to address distorting features of
the property tax environment. 

The Economic Services team represents the Treasury at a wide range of interdepartmental
committees and other fora – including the Board of the SA Rail Commuter Corporation,
the Critical Infrastructure Adjudication Board, the Taxi Recapitalisation Steering
Committee, the Commuter Rail Restructuring Task Team, the Olifants River Dam Project
Steering Committee, the Strategic Industrial Programme Adjudication Board, the Servcon
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Housing Solutions Board, the Affordable Housing Working Group of the Finance Charter,
the National Electricity Advisory Committee, the National Freight Logistics Working
Group, the Agriculture Food Security and Nutrition Task Team and the steering
committees on energy subsidies and on renewable energy of the Department of Minerals
and Energy.

The review of budget proposals and formulation of advice to the Medium-Term
Expenditure Committee and the Ministers' Committee on the Budget remain important
aspects of the team's work.  For the 2004/05 year, priority initiatives included the
development of guidelines on budget proposal evaluation and the introduction of a
methodology for "regulatory impact assessments", aimed at reducing the compliance and
administrative burden on small businesses associated with legislation and regulations.

Administrative Services consists of three units that are responsible for central government
departments (including Home Affairs and Foreign Affairs), financial and administrative
departments (including National Treasury and Statistics SA) and the Departments of
Public Works; Provincial and Local Government; and the South African Management
Development Institute (SAMDI). The post of Administrative Services head is vacant and
12 positions are filled, including two intern budget analysts appointed in 2004.

Areas in which the team played a significant role during 2003/04, were:

l Foreign Affairs – Feasibility studies to determine financing options for the
acquisition of properties abroad; financing arrangements for the Pan African
Parliament; financing of the NEPAD Secretariat;

l Government Communications and Information System (GCIS) – Support for the
establishment of Multi-Purpose Community Centres;

l Home Affairs – Working Group to review and oversee implementation of the HANIS
project; review of immigration law and regulations; support for departmental
turnaround strategy;

l Provincial and Local Government – Financing protocol for the Urban Renewal and
Integrated Rural Sustainable Development Programme; consolidation of municipal
grants; development of a disaster management and financing protocol;

l Public Service and Administration – Review of State Information Technology
Agency (SITA) tariffs; financing of Eastern Cape intervention;

l Public Works – Review of accountability and budgeting arrangements for national
and provincial property and related expenditure;

l Statistics SA – Technical support relating to the revision of baseline allocations to
accommodate a sample census in 2006; and

l National Treasury – Development of a database of budget and expenditure figures on
the civil and military pensions and medical contributions.

The team has focused its efforts over the past year on improving the monitoring and
reporting on expenditure trends, and supporting the introduction of the new Chart of
Accounts.  Assistance has also been provided to departments with trading accounts, or to
those intending to introduce trading accounts as part of their financial management
systems.

PROGRAMME 2
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The Administrative Services team is represented on the Immigration Advisory Board; the
Disaster Management Committee; the Urban Renewal and Integrated Sustainable
Development Programme; and various interdepartmental task teams.

The Justice and Protection Services team comprises five units responsible for Justice and
Constitutional Development; Correctional Services; Safety and Security; Defence; the
Independent Complaints Directorate; Secret Services Departments, and the Integrated
Justice Cluster. The team is also responsible for three constitutional institutions (SA
Human Rights Commission, Commission on Gender Equality, Public Protector) and three
public entities (Legal Aid Board, Special Investigating Unit and Armscor). In March
2004, the team comprised 14 staff members, with three budget analyst posts vacant.

The team has been instrumental in guiding and providing technical assistance in key
projects of departments that needed assistance. These included:

l Support for the development of measurable objectives for several departments;
l Planning of a human resource audit across the Integrated Justice Sector;
l A Performance Review of the Criminal Justice System;
l Support for the SAPS' strategy of enhancing crime prevention through visible

policing;
l Various initiatives to improve court efficiency, including the building of family

courts and child justice centres and the appointment of maintenance officers and
investigators;

l Review and adjustments to the costs estimates of the strategic armaments
procurement programme of the Department of Defence;

l The strengthening of the investigating capability of the Independent Complaints
Directorate; 

l The transfer of the Automated Fingerprint Identification System (AFIS) to a private
party; 

l The transfer of excess Defence Force personnel to the SAPS Protection and Security
Services Division;

l The implementation of the Regulation of Interception of Communication and
Provision of Communication-Related Information;

l The development of a policy document on the allocation of funds from the Criminal
Assets Recovery Account;

l The development of a plan for the Department of Correctional Services to enable
Medcor to meet the requirements of the Registrar of Medical Schemes by 2006/07;
and

l The planning and financing of Correctional Services capital projects, and assessment
of PPP prisons.

The team is represented on the IJS Development Board, overseeing the activities of the
Integrated Justice Sector (IJS) Programme Office, and coordinates activities of the IJS
Budget Review team. The team is also represented on departmental budget review
committees where valuable information on budget matters and financial management is
shared. A valuable IJS seminar was held, providing an opportunity for the exchange of
ideas between researchers and departmental planners. The team led a JCPS cluster
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initiative to build a model to predict detainee numbers and identify practical steps to
reduce overcrowding and IJS blockages.  The team also represented the Treasury on a
task team to report on the restructuring of the Office of the Secretary for Defence. 

The team held a strategic planning workshop in March 2004. For risk management
purposes, staff rotation was adopted as a strategy to ensure undisturbed support in the
absence of a team member. Several projects were also identified and allocated to project
managers. The team intends to expand its involvement in certain areas to ensure effective
implementation of the PFMA, including devolution of financial responsibility to non-
financial managers and the implementation of the new Standard Chart of Accounts.

The Social Services team comprises four divisions (Education, Arts, Culture, Science and
Technology and Sport; Health; Welfare and Social Security; and Labour) and a senior
management position for intersectoral matters.  At the end of 2003/04, 10 posts were
filled. The team also had the support of a US Treasury Resident Advisor and her
secretariat.

A key output area is to ensure appropriate sectoral financing, primarily through the
central government budget, but also through other appropriate mechanisms (such as
dedicated taxes in the case of the Unemployment Insurance Fund, PPPs and the
generation of own, direct revenue.)  The activities of the unit support both national and
provincial budget processes.

Key activities during the past year included:

l Support in developing measurable objectives;
l Submissions on social services sectoral priorities;
l Drafting of social service chapters for Treasury reports and policy documents; and
l Intergovernmental fora for education, health and social development, jointly

managed with the Intergovernmental Relations section.

Substantial initiatives during the course of the year included the following:

l Education: The Treasury participated extensively in processes around the
implementation and evaluation of the norms and standards for school funding, and
the revision of financing arrangements for higher education. Other activities included
the review of earmarked allocations for restructuring and for the National Student
Financial Aid Scheme; support through the 4x4 process for increased allocation to
school-level, non-personnel recurrent expenditure, which increased strongly in the
2003/04 budgets and beyond; negotiation with education departments relating to
appropriate targets for non-personnel, non-capital spending, partly through Heads of
Education Department Committee (HEDCOM) standing committees; and support
for the transfer of the school nutrition programme to the Department of Education.

l Health: The report of the Joint Health and Treasury Task Team charged with
examining treatment options to supplement comprehensive care for HIV and Aids in
the public health sector was completed, leading to the Operational Plan for
Comprehensive HIV and Aids Care, Management and Treatment for South Africa.
Work continued on capital funding in the health sector and funding of hospital

PROGRAMME 2
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revitalisation. Proposals around a scarce skills and rural allowance strategy for health
were completed and negotiated extensively with the health sector. There was initial
engagement with the review of tertiary services funding, including assessment of
budget proposals in that regard. Extensive work was done on the financing of
primary care (including environmental health services). Several briefings and
analyses of social health insurance proposals were developed and the unit supported
the work of the international review panel in that regard, as well as processes around
the development of proposals for a medical scheme for civil servants.

l Social Development: Modelling of the costs of social grants has again supported
provincial planning and budgeting for grant allocations and increases, and costing of
the extension of the child support grant (building on prior work on demographic and
socio-economic determinants). There were detailed interactions with provinces on
beneficiary trends and financial implications.  The unit has also been extensively
involved in the preparation for the establishment of the National Social Development
Agency and various legislative and regulatory aspects of the social security
environment, as well as social welfare services draft legislation.

l Labour: Enhancement of management and oversight of Sector Education and
Training Authorities (SETAs) was a priority activity over the past year.  The Treasury
also participated in the development of the Child Labour Action Plan and the review
of the National Skills Strategy and contributed to the promotion of Growth and
Development Strategy commitments.

l Sport and Recreation: Substantial time was allocated to finalising guarantees and
other Treasury inputs required for the South African bid to host the World Cup in
2010.

l Poverty relief allocations: An exhaustive review of the poverty relief allocation was
completed with the purpose of assessing the impact of projects and links to core
departmental functions. That led to the phasing out of the special allocation, with
resources either added to department baselines or included in the municipal
infrastructure grant.

The head of the unit participates in the activities of the FOSAD Social Cluster on behalf
of the Director-General of the National Treasury. The team has also been active in
supporting provincial strategic planning for the social services and standardising budget
structures, and is represented on the boards of the Durban Institute of Technology and of
the National Student Financial Aid Scheme.

A useful strategic planning workshop took place in March 2004, using facilitation support
and incorporating a limited client survey. A range of key projects, largely focused on
Government's critical poverty reduction challenge and the need to improve the quality of
spending in the social services, has been identified for the year ahead. 

The Technical Assistance team programme is a joint South Africa/European Union (EU)-
funded initiative, providing project management support to government departments,
agencies or donor-financed programmes, with a particular focus on enhancing social
development and poverty reduction. The Technical Assistance unit has a core staff of
eight, and makes extensive use of technical advisors on a contract basis to support
specific projects.
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The unit's work during the year under review included:

l Assistance to the Department of Education with the transfer of the primary school
nutrition programme from provincial health departments;

l Assistance to the Department of Education on the school-building programme
supported by the European Union;

l Support for the transfer of medico-legal services (mortuaries) from the SAPS to
provincial health departments;

l Design of an Infrastructure Delivery Management System to strengthen the planning,
tendering, contracting and management of infrastructure investment and
maintenance projects, particularly in provincial public works and related
departments;

l Assistance to the Department of Health in managing a Southern African
Development Community (SADC) grant-making programme in support of HIV/Aids
funded by the EU;  

l Project management support for urban renewal initiatives overseen by the
Department of Provincial and Local Government and various municipalities.

·l Project management support for provincial health departments, especially in the
Northern Cape;

l Implementation of a municipal economic development strategy focused on economic
linkages (value-added in tourism or agriculture, for example) reflected in local
Integrated Development Plans;

l Enhancement of project management capacity and enterprise development in the
GCIS;

l Consolidation and reform of the governance of public entities;
l Assistance to Parliament with the design of a capacity-building programme;
l Assistance with tendering processes and project coordination for the implementation

of the DNA Laboratory of the SAPS; and
l Capacity building for the Social Housing Foundation.

A new work plan of the Technical Assistance Team Programme (TAT II), organised into
three focus clusters: social development; crime prevention and justice; and economic
development, has been agreed with the EU for the period beginning June 2004.

Intergovernmental Relations

The Intergovernmental Relations division is responsible for overseeing the development
of the intergovernmental fiscal system and for coordinating fiscal relations between the
national, provincial and local spheres of government. Intergovernmental Relations plays
a key role in managing the intergovernmental fiscal framework; analysing and ensuring
oversight of provincial and local government budgets and intergovernmental grants; and
implementing financial management reforms at the provincial and local level, including
the implementation of the PFMA and MFMA in provinces and municipalities,
respectively. The division comprises three chief directorates: intergovernmental policy
and planning, provincial budget analysis and local government.

The 2004 Budget reflects the continuing evolution of our intergovernmental system. The
division is responsible for preparing the annual Division of Revenue Act, including the
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detailed grant frameworks and three-year allocations for each provincial and local
government grant, by province and municipality. 

The 2004 Division of Revenue Act assigns over 60 per cent of non-interest allocations on
the main Budget and takes the form of transfers to provincial and local governments,
placing them at the forefront of social and basic service delivery. The allocations and
transfers to provinces for 2003/04 amounted to R181 billion, and R14,2 billion for local
government. The introduction of new frameworks for the allocation of grants to provinces
and local government in the 2003/04 Budget provided sharper definitions of the purpose
and intended outputs for each grant. That enhanced transparency and it is expected to lead
to further improvements in service delivery. 

With regard to the provincial sphere, the division worked closely with provincial
treasuries, which resulted in stable provincial finances, with budget and monthly
reporting systems now deeply rooted. Budget reforms continued, with the development
of uniform sector budgets and strategic plan formats, allowing for more comparability
between provinces and provincial departments in particular. Other improvements
included the development of performance indicators for each sector, and the more
uniform annual reports for each sector. Much of the division's time is taken up in
developing good, constructive working relationships with the nine provincial treasuries
and national departments through the Budget Council, joint MinMECs and many
technical committees, such as the Technical Committee for Finance and the sectoral
technical committees ("4x4s" and "10x10s"). The sectors covered include education,
health, social development, housing, roads, transport and agriculture. 

The biggest challenge now facing Government is to extend the reforms already instituted
within provinces to the local sphere. The late passage of the MFMA on 26 November
2003 and the phased implementation from 1 July 2004 will require added focus. 

The division has also provided targeted support to municipalities to improve their
financial management capacities and to strengthen the link between policy, planning and
budgets. The quality of provincial budget documents continued to improve with
standardisation of budget formats for each provincial sector. With regard to local
government, the placement of 33 international advisors and over 160 finance-
management graduates from previously disadvantaged communities as interns laid the
basis for future improvements in financial management. The division expanded its
coverage from 37 municipalities in 2002 to 63 municipalities in 2003. 

The division is also responsible for monitoring all provincial and local government
budgets, and compiled a database of all such budget information. 

The Intergovernmental Relations division is also responsible for publishing the annual
'Intergovernmental Fiscal Review'. However, due to the 2004 elections, it was decided
that the 2004 review would only be published after the elections. The reason for that
decision was to allow for the inclusion of significant changes that might have an effect
on provincial budgets after the elections. The 'Intergovernmental Fiscal Review' provides
a consolidated review of how the nine provinces and 284 municipalities fund the delivery
of social and basic services to communities. The wealth of information it provides is
aimed at promoting better accountability by providing valuable information to the public,
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elected officials, public servants and policy researchers to improve the quality and
delivery of public services.

The division is further responsible for administering Programme 6 – Provincial and Local
Government Transfers. It also monitored provincial compliance with the provisions of the
PFMA and the Division of Revenue Act that relate to fiscal transfers, specifically to
conditional grants administered by the National Treasury. 

The division is also responsible for ensuring that sectoral policies affecting provincial and
local spheres of government are affordable and within the boundaries of the fiscal
framework for those two spheres.

Over the next three years, the Intergovernmental team will be undertaking a major review
of the fiscal framework for provincial and local spheres, including a review of the
equitable share formulae and other grants, and sub-national taxation and borrowing
powers. Such a framework will take into account the impact of the shift in the social grant
function, as well as the restructuring of the electricity-distribution industry.  

Economic Policy and International Financial Relations

The Economic Policy and International Financial division provides professional advice
and support to the Minister of Finance on a wide range of economic issues spanning
growth; employment; international trade and financial relations; financial market
development and regulation; tax efficiency and equity; and provides a macroeconomic
framework to underpin the Budget.

The Macroeconomic Policy unit continually monitors, models and provides policy input
on the general health of the economy. With the macroeconomic fundamentals in place,
the unit has focused its attention on studying the microeconomic constraints that hamper
growth and identifying solutions to the problem. The unit has, therefore, been extensively
involved in the Economic and Employment Cluster, working with other government
departments for a more integrated approach to economic growth. In particular, the unit
has endeavoured to strengthen the micro-macro links of the South African economy,
ensuring that the stability that has been achieved over the years is not compromised.

In this regard, a number of activities have been undertaken, including the reviewing of
utility prices and attaining a better understanding of price-setting mechanisms in the
microeconomy. The unit led an interdepartmental team to investigate the efficiency of
utilities and their pricing behaviour. Likewise, it participates in an interdepartmental task
team responsible for publishing an administered price index. As a result of this process,
Statistics SA will, for the first time, publish an administered price index before the end of
2004.

The unit was responsible for coordinating the Growth and Development Summit (GDS),
which took place in June 2003. The Summit resulted in closer cooperation between
government, labour and business in taking forward social agreements. The unit
continues to have engagements with NEDLAC constituencies and is facilitating the
implementation of the various elements agreed to during the GDS and the Financial
Sector Summit.
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One of the issues discussed at the Summit was the improvement of the investment climate
while making room for poverty alleviation.  To that end, the unit has had extensive
engagements with business and industry regulators around the inflation target and
efficiency improvements.

The implementation and strengthening of the inflation targeting regime remains at the
heart of the unit's work. A major output of this work was the introduction of the
continuous target that was announced by the Minister of Finance in November 2003. The
signing of a Memorandum of Understanding between the National Treasury and the
Reserve Bank in March of 2004, including the establishment of a Macroeconomic
Standing Committee, has further strengthened cooperation in that area. 

The unit is also responsible for delivering the macroeconomic framework that informs the
MFEF.  The underlying macroeconomic forecasting model has been strengthened. The
modelling work has also been also expanded to examine the distributional effects of
various government policy interventions through the development of a CGE model.
Sectoral models are being developed to strengthen the unit's understanding of the
microeconomy.

Activities undertaken in the year under review, included the following:

l A Savings Workshop to inform policy going forward;
l An audit of implementation of post-1994 labour legislation;
l A review of mark-ups in the South African manufacturing sector;
l An update of internal macroeconomic work on HIV and Aids;
l A re-estimation of the annual and quarterly econometric models to take account of

stationarity issues; and
l A study on competition in the South African banking sector.

The Tax Policy unit is responsible for advising the Minister of Finance on tax policy
issues that arise at all three levels of government.  In its policy advice function to
Government, the unit has to design tax instruments that achieve an optimal mix between
revenue-raising, economic and redistributive efficiency as well as social policy goals. All
of this has to be done in a manner that creates a basis for general political acceptability
of the selected tax instruments.

Moreover, intensive and close cooperation between the South African Revenue Service
(SARS) and the National Treasury has enabled the alignment of tax administration
concerns with tax policy preferences. The unit made major advances in engaging with
taxpayer associations, the corporate sector and the general taxpaying public in a
structured manner so that the tax policy choices made by Government are understood and
supported.

The 2003/04 financial year began with the announcement of an amnesty for undeclared
foreign assets, providing relief for the failure to disclose foreign assets/income in terms
of Exchange Control and tax. The amnesty window lasted from 1 June 2003 to 
29 February 2004. The amnesty has been a success, with the Amnesty unit receiving over 
42 000 applications. The amount of foreign assets disclosed should add substantially to
the income tax base, thereby providing further fiscal space for reform in terms of tax
relief and/or increased government expenditure.
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The latter half of the year saw the translation into tax law of a series of tax stimulus
measures announced in the 2004 Budget. The most notable of these measures was the tax
incentive for urban renewal, which will provide depreciation incentives for building or
renovating structures in designated urban areas. The goal is to stimulate private-sector
support that will complement other, ongoing government efforts. Other measures
included incentives for start-up operations, relief for the sale of business assets if sales
proceeds are reinvested and permanent retention of the accelerated depreciation for
manufacturing assets.

In 2003, the National Treasury released the first draft of the Mineral and Petroleum
Royalty Bill. This Bill is currently being revised to account for public comments,
including clarification of mineral values to be relied on for the royalty's base, as well as
relief for marginal mines. Other important policy matters that were addressed included
measures to avoid a double royalty implication for mines that have negotiated mining
rights from tribal communities. The General Tax Analysis Directorate developed an
elaborate econometric model testing for the distributional and economic impacts of the
proposed royalty dispensation during the course of 2003. These results are feeding into
the current revision of the royalty regime.

In terms of retirement fund tax reform, a discussion document is being prepared for
public comment, which should be released after certain key decisions are made in terms
of reforms to the current regulatory environment for the pension fund industry.

A number of other key activities were undertaken by the Tax unit in 2003/04, namely:

l Statistics of income for collection, revenue estimation and risk profiling purposes
have been developed; 

l The tax expenditure budget statement, which was released for the first time in the
2003 Budget Review, has been further refined with a view to providing a better
understanding of the scope of indirect subsidies provided by Government to certain
sectors in the economy;  

l More refined revenue estimation models for the range of tax instruments currently
employed have been developed;

l A review of the VAT treatment of grants/transfer payments to Public Entities and
PPPs has been completed;

l Work on Environmental Fiscal Reform in South Africa. A draft report was circulated
to all relevant stakeholders and a successful two-day workshop where the report was
discussed was held in November 2003;

l Participation in the development of an appropriately designed levy on plastic
shopping bags, implemented with effect from 1 June 2004;

l A very successful workshop on excise duties was held in April 2003;
l A study of energy subsidies was undertaken to investigate, in particular, the impact

of the VAT zero-rating of illuminating paraffin. This study was completed in
December 2003 and one of the findings of the report was that the benefit of zero-
rating of illuminating paraffin was not passed on to consumers; and

l The unit continues to play a leading role in coordinating tax policy programmes and
capacity-building events at the regional level through the work of the SADC Tax
Subcommittee, which is chaired by South Africa. Capacity-building workshops were
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held in the areas of tax administration and tax policy; double taxation treaties; excise
taxation and tax incentives. The SADC tax database was transferred to the SADC
Secretariat in Botswana for maintenance and updating purposes.

The Financial Sector Policy unit is responsible for advising the Minister of Finance on
policies aimed at promoting the growth, development and stability of the financial sector.
This is achieved through interaction and dialogue between the National Treasury,
regulatory authorities, consumer groups and the industry at large.  Much of its work is
focused on developing legislation and regulations that are necessary to implement the
policy approach adopted.

The unit has the following key strategic objectives:

l To promote a more equitable and efficient financial sector;
l To embrace financial stability;
l To increase the protection of investors and consumers;
l To ensure that South Africa both meets and influences the development of

international standards in the financial sector; and
l To promote the growth of the sector actively.

The unit is responsible for liaison with the SARB on matters related to bank supervision,
financial stability, the national payment system and exchange controls; as well as with the
FSB, which supervises the non-banking financial services sector.  

The Financial Sector Policy team represents the National Treasury at various committees,
including the Policy Board for Financial Services and Regulation – a statutory body that
advises the Minister on the financial services industry and regulatory framework; the
Financial Markets Advisory Board – a statutory advisory board responsible for issues that
affect the financial markets; and the Standing Committee for the Revision of the Banks
Act (94 of 1990).

The unit also engages with regional organisations, such as the Common Monetary Area
(CMA) and the Committee of Insurance, Securities and Non-banking Financial
Authorities (CISNA), a subcommittee of the SADC. Furthermore, the unit seeks to
influence the international financial sector policy agenda through participation in and
contributions towards the work of international fora, such as the G20, the International
Organization of Securities Commissions (IOSCO), the Bank for International Settlements
(BIS) and the Financial Action Task Force (FATF).  

In 2003, as part of its initiative to deal with money laundering, South Africa increased its
international cooperation through gaining membership to the Financial FATF, the
international anti-money-laundering policy-setting body. South Africa is the only African
country belonging to this 33-member organisation. The unit continues to work closely
with the FIC on policy issues relating to anti-money laundering and combating the
financing of terrorism.

A milestone in the transformation of the financial sector was reached in October 2003
with the launch of the ‘Financial Sector Charter’. The Charter is an industry-driven
initiative, but the unit has been actively involved in the implementation process. A key
policy aim is to ensure that the South African financial sector provides services that meet
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the needs of all South Africans, ranging from multi-national conglomerates to the
ordinary citizen. The unit commissioned research into third-tier banking and is
participating in the restructuring process of the Post Bank. It is currently in the process of
formulating legislation on cooperative banks and is working with the SARB on the
development of legislation for core and narrow banks. 

Research is being conducted in various other areas. Efforts on drafting a policy and legal
position on a South African Deposit Insurance Scheme are currently under way, with the
aim of enacting legislation by 2006/07. A process has begun to review the Pension Funds
Act (24 of 1956), with the aim of producing a principles document for discussion later in
the year so that drafting can begin in 2005. The full implementation of the Financial
Advisory and Intermediary Services Bill will occur on 30 September 2004. The
Ministerial Panel for the Review of the Accounting Professions Bill completed its report
and presented it to the Minister in August 2003. The consultation process was completed
in December 2003, and the Bill is currently being drafted.  

Lastly, the unit has participated actively in bilateral and multilateral negotiations
pertaining to trade in financial services. The unit is currently working with the
Department of Trade and Industry, and other stakeholders in researching and developing
a strategy to further the trade in financial services.

The International Economics unit has four core areas of responsibility, namely:

l Deepening and extending economic linkages among African economies;
l Strengthening South Africa's capital account;
l Reforming the international financial architecture; and
l Shaping the international development policy agenda.

Regional policy remains a key focus of the work of the unit. This includes work in the
SADC, the Southern African Customs Union (SACU) and the CMA.  Among the projects
on regional integration, the past year saw an effort to operationalise a revised SACU
agreement, covering management and institutional issues, signed in 2003 following eight
years of negotiations.

The SADC adopted a development framework, the ‘Regional Indicative Strategic
Development Plan’ (RISDP), which sets out the strategic priorities of the SADC and
provides the framework for the integration of the economies, with the ultimate objective
of fostering sustainable development. The SADC Finance and Investment Sector is also
finalising the Finance and Investment Protocol. The policy objectives for the Protocol
include regional macroeconomic stability and convergence, encouraging savings and
stimulating investment flows in the region.

At continental level, the National Treasury was involved in technical support to the
creation of the African Peer Review Mechanism (APRM), which came into effect on 
17 February 2004. That effort to improve policies and the investment climate in Africa
has been further supplemented in 2003 by National Treasury's advocacy of stronger
technical cooperation among African policy makers in the area of finance, economic
development and planning. 

In March 2004, Treasury hosted a successful conference of African Finance Ministers to
develop a common position on issues of 'Voice and Representation of African countries
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in the Bretton Woods Institutions'. The Johannesburg Communiqué has since informed
further discussion in the G24 on these issues.     

The International Economics unit's trade work in 2003 included two reports: a study on
the impact of the African Growth and Opportunity on Agriculture in Africa and a study
of the SACU arrangement.

The unit continued its work on capital account policy with research on capital flows and
financial market integration. It also advised on exchange control policy and capital
account reform. A major focus has been on the transition from exchange controls to
prudential regulation of foreign investments of institutional investors. A new application
process, new application forms and quarterly reports applicable to each type of qualifying
institution were finalised and issued in 2003. Another major area of focus has been on
making South African financial markets more attractive and better equipped to meet the
capital-raising needs of the continent. The enabling of inward listings on the JSE
Securities Exchange SA will contribute to the realisation of that objective. 

The reform of the international financial architecture continues to be an important area of
work for International Economics, with participation in the International Monetary and
Financial Committee (IMFC), the G20, and the G24. The Treasury has been active in
promoting reforms and policy initiatives that are favourable to South Africa, in particular,
and African countries in general. In particular, proposals have been made for greater debt
relief and an increased focus by the IMF on poverty reduction. With other emerging
market countries, the National Treasury pressed for the reform of the IMF's emergency
financing mechanisms to improve their suitability for the current global financial
environment.

The Treasury also organises the IMF's Article IV and interim consultations. South Africa's
Article IV report for 2003 confirmed the strength and management of the economy. In
addition, South Africa has completed 11 (more than any other country in the G20) of the
IMF's Reports on the Observance of Standards and Codes, which cover compliance with
best practice in financial sector policy and fiscal management. 

Global development policy remained a priority for International Economics in 2003. The
unit provided policy support to the Minister of Finance as chair of the Development
Committee, a joint World Bank-IMF committee that provides guidance on development
issues. Policy advice focused on sustainable debt relief, enhanced aid flows and growth
enhancing strategies that reduce poverty. A framework for monitoring the implementation
of the Monterrey consensus and the Millennium Development Goals, was implemented.  
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Purpose: To provide for the prudent management of Government's financial assets and
liabilities.

Measurable objective: The programme aims to manage the Government's asset and
liability portfolio in a manner that ensures prudent cash management, asset restructuring
and financial management, and optimal management of the Government's domestic and
foreign debt portfolio. Programme activities are carried out through five subprogrammes:

l Management manages the Office of the Head of the Division.

l Liability Management provides for the Government's liquidity needs and ensures
prudent management of both domestic and foreign debt by issuing debt instruments
at the lowest possible cost, subject to acceptable levels of risk. It also contributes to
the development of domestic capital markets and provides for timeously servicing of
debt.

l Financial Operations is responsible for the management of the Government's liquidity
requirements. It ensures that all Government's debt transactions are recorded timeously
and reported in terms of the Public Finance Management Act (1 of 1999) (PFMA). It
also ensures that all other reporting requirements of multilateral institutions are met. It,
furthermore, provides for divisional Information System requirements.

l Strategy and Risk Management develops and maintains the government-wide risk
management framework and ensures that the strategies adopted by the Asset and
Liability Management division are in line with the agreed framework. These include
country, market, credit and budget risks.

l Asset Management is committed to enhancing shareholder value through restructured
state-owned entities. It monitors and enforces compliance with corporate governance
for government bodies and public entities in accordance with the PFMA, and
coordinates borrowing activities of public entities in line with Treasury Regulations.
It also provides for the coordination of the issuance of guarantees.

Service Delivery Objectives and Indicators

Recent outputs

Liability Management – The revised net borrowing requirement of R36,5 billion for
2003/04  was financed successfully. This was financed through the issuance of domestic
short-term loans (R6,7 billion), domestic long-term loans (R31,1 billion), foreign loans
(R1,0 billion) and changes in cash and other balances (R-2,3 billion).

It was projected that the equivalent of $1,0 billion would be financed in the foreign capital
markets. However, in May 2003, Government issued a 10-year global Euro bond
maturing in May 2013 to the equivalent of $1,4 billion. The Net Open Forward Position
(NOFP) had a positive balance of $6,4 billion at 31 March 2004 and future foreign loan
issues will focus on the financing of redeeming foreign loans and disbursements
pertaining to the arms procurement programme. To take advantage of favourable market
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conditions, the $1,5 billion syndicate loan due in July 2004 was prematurely repaid,
primarily using domestic funding.

In terms of the Gold and Foreign Exchange Contingency Reserve Account Defrayal Act,
Government needs to pay R28,0 billion to the South African Reserve Bank (SARB) by
2005/06 to defray realised losses on this account.  A further R7 billion of losses were
defrayed in 2003/04 by issuing bonds to the SARB, bringing the total to R14 billion.

Preparatory work to introduce Retail Bonds was completed by the end of 2003/04 and
was successfully launched on 24 May 2004. 

Interest to the amount of R46,1 billion was paid to the investors in Government's debt and
maturing debt of R39,9 billion was repaid. During 2003, South Africa's credit rating was
upgraded by Standard & Poor's, Fitch Ratings and Rating and Investment Information Inc
to BBB, BBB and BBB+, respectively. Moody's has placed South Africa under a positive
review.

Financial Operations implemented enhanced intergovernmental cash coordination
processes in two provinces. It is expected that the remaining seven provinces will
implement these processes during 2004/05. The re-engineering of existing cash
management processes has resulted in the exchequer balances on which no interest was
earned being lowered from R500 million to R100 million, resulting in additional interest
of R35 million being earned annually. On the systems development front, the business
processes review has been concluded and an information-management strategy, outlining
the next generation of applications, was approved by management. The implementation
of the Commonwealth Debt Recording and Management System (CS-DRMS) was
terminated because the system did not meet the technical requirements of a sophisticated
government debt market such as South Africa's. Regarding debt information reporting, all
debt transactions were recorded timeously and ongoing dissemination of information to
the market further enhanced transparency.

Strategy and Risk Management – In actively managing the Government's debt portfolio,
the National Treasury has the responsibility to identify, control and manage the risks to
which Government is exposed. A comprehensive risk management framework, which
provides for a set of benchmarks or reference criteria against which the structure and
evolution of the debt portfolio can be tested and understood, was developed. Initially, the
focus was on market risk and government-wide risk was not given a high priority. The
risk management model has since been broadened to encompass broader contingent
liability risk issues within the public sector. All possible government-wide risks have
been identified and will be incorporated in a comprehensive risk management framework.

Asset Management is responsible for the Registrar of Public Entities, which listed 15,
delisted 42 and effected name changes to eight public entities listed under the Schedules
of the PFMA.  

In compliance with Sections 52 and 55(1) (d) of the Act, 90 per cent of all listed national
government business enterprises (Schedules 2 and 3B) and 93 per cent of all national
public entities (Schedules 2, 3A and 3B), submitted their corporate plans and annual
financial statements, respectively. The public entities that did not comply were reported
to the Office of the Auditor-General and to the Parliamentary Standing Committee on
Public Accounts (SCOPA).
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During the period under review, the Guarantee Certification Committee (GCC)
recommended the approval of guarantees (R7,0 billion); indemnities and securities 
(R0,2 billion); and a borrowing limit (R0,2 billion) in respect of public entities. 

The Treasury Regulations were amended to regulate the disclosure of emoluments to all
directors and executive management of public entities and their subsidiaries in their
annual financial statements. Since 2003, all public entities have complied with the
requirement, subjecting the emoluments of directors and executive management to public
scrutiny. This brought the reporting by public entities on par with JSE-listed companies,
as directed in terms of the King II Report on Corporate Governance.

Asset Management continued to provide ongoing support for the restructuring of state-
owned enterprises (SOEs). However, because of the postponement of the sale of
SAFCOL and the delay in the concession of the Durban Container Port, only R8,0 million
of the budgeted R2,5 billion in proceeds from the restructuring of state-owned assets was
received. In addition, the National Treasury recognised that the alienation of Transnet's
assets might trigger Transnet's loan covenants. A review of Transnet's loan covenants
was, therefore, initiated. 

The responsibility for the restructuring of SOE's lies mainly with the Department of
Public Enterprises and those departments responsible for the enterprises' policies.
Furthermore, the requirements to establish regulatory environments, to ensure that
prudent commercial norms are adhered to and that market conditions are conclusive,
affect the realisation of restructuring proceeds. The National Treasury, therefore,
regularly reviews and re-estimates proceeds from restructuring and, if necessary, adjusts
the Government's borrowing requirements.

Dividends amounting to R1,2 billion were paid into the National Revenue Fund during
2003/04. A further amount of R0,2 billion was also received in respect of profits from the
SARB.
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PROGRAMME 4

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND SYSTEMS
Purpose: To provide for the management and regulation of Government's supply-chain
processes, the implementation and maintenance of standardised financial systems and the
coordination of the implementation of the Public Finance Management Act (1 of 1999)
(PFMA) and related capacity-building initiatives.

Measurable objective: The programme aims to regulate and oversee public-sector
supply chain management (SCM) and standardise the financial systems of national and
provincial government, as well as to coordinate the implementation of the PFMA.

Managed by the Specialist Function division, programme activities are carried out under
the following subprogrammes:

l Supply Chain Management develops policy that regulates the acquisition of goods
and services in the public sector; monitors policy outcomes; and facilitates and
manages transversal term contracts on behalf of Government.

l PFMA Implementation is charged with coordinating the implementation of the
PFMA and related capacity-building initiatives.

l Financial Systems aims to provide an uninterrupted financial systems operation to
Government.

Service Delivery Objectives and Indicators

Recent outputs

Supply Chain Management – Government initiated reforms to its procurement policies
and systems and this process continued during the period under review. Reforms focus on
the promotion of good governance and the introduction of a preference system to address
certain socio-economic objectives. These are embedded in Sections 76(4)(c) of the
PFMA and 112(1) of the Municipal Finance Management Act (56 of 2003) (MFMA) and
the Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act (5 of 2000) (PPPFA).

A framework for SCM, applicable to all national and provincial departments,
constitutional institutions, as well as Schedule 3A and 3C public entities, was
promulgated on 5 December 2003. Workshops to introduce SCM were held with all
national and provincial departments, constitutional entities and relevant public entities. 

Implementation of the Supply Chain Management Framework promotes uniformity in the
different spheres of government in repealing tender-board legislation and gives effect to
the PFMA intent to devolve responsibility and accountability for supply chain-related
matters to accounting officers. At national level, the State Tender Board Regulations were
amended to allow accounting officers to procure goods and services in terms of the
PFMA. The repeal of the State Tender Board Act has been provided for in the PFMA
Amendment Bill. Provincial treasuries have initiated their own legislative processes for
the repeal of respective provincial tender board legislation.  

The National Treasury has issued a number of practice notes in terms of the SCM
Framework to guide uniformity in practices and procedures across national and
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provincial government. Provincial treasuries may issue further practice notes in a
cascading fashion, guiding the more detailed, technical implementation of SCM practice.
The National Treasury also issued a 'Supply Chain Management Guide' for accounting
officers/authorities.

Implementation of SCM practice is being phased in over the Medium-Term Expenditure
Framework (MTEF) because of considerable divergence between current government
procurement and provisioning practice and new SCM policies, systems, procedures and
processes. 

Departments are required to establish SCM units under the responsibility and
management of departmental chief financial officers, ensuring that clear lines of authority
and accountability, as well as performance criteria contribute towards minimising risk;
improving sourcing procedures and processes; and enhancing asset and inventory
management.

Accounting officers are responsible for ensuring that their SCM personnel are adequately
trained. The National Treasury facilitates this process by engaging several stakeholders,
including the South African Management Development Institute (SAMDI) and the
Institute for Public Finance and Auditing, to develop appropriate SCM training material.

The National Treasury Supply Chain Management Office is responsible for the
facilitation and management of transversal term contracts on behalf of Government. The
Office also ensures the alignment of Government SCM practice with the requirements of
the PFMA. 

The Supply Chain Management team has also begun to implement a high-level
management information system to enable Government to obtain information about total
procurement in Government and to monitor the extent to which procurement reform
objectives are achieved. Minimum reporting requirements have been prescribed for
accounting officers/authorities with a view to establish a reliable database over the next
three years. Over this MTEF period, the National Treasury, in collaboration with the
Department of Trade and Industry, is in the process of amending the preferential
procurement system, ensuring that it contributes more effectively towards meeting
Government's objectives for black economic empowerment.  

The MFMA was to come into effect on 1 July 2004. The National Treasury is already
involved in consultation processes with municipalities and organised local government in
drafting a framework for implementation of SCM.

PFMA Implementation – This unit focused largely on coordinating finance-related
capacity building initiatives and providing Cabinet and Parliament's Standing Committee
on Public Accounts (SCOPA) with progress reports on the implementation of the PFMA.
In this regard, a compliance survey was conducted and reports were forwarded to Cabinet
and SCOPA during July 2003. These progress reports were based on a National Treasury
compiled document entitled 'Normative Measures for Financial Management (Phase 1:
Perfecting the Basics)'. The document was compiled with the intention of providing a
benchmark to accounting officers to assist them in evaluating financial management
within their departments continuously and to report meaningfully thereon in their annual
reports. The 'Normative Measures' document also serves as a framework to assess both

PROGRAMME 4
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compliance and qualitative improvement associated with PFMA implementation in
departments, and constitutional institutions are making good progress towards PFMA
compliance. There has been a notable degree of improvement in financial management.

The PFMA Implementation unit has also initiated a process to develop a guideline
document that would assist Members of Parliament in strengthening their oversight
responsibilities through the evaluation of annual reports and financial statements. This
guideline will also prove invaluable in assisting Members of Parliament to provide
feedback to the executive on institutional performance.

During January 2004, the PFMA Implementation unit prepared a memorandum to inform
Cabinet on the audit outcomes of national and provincial entities in respect of their
2002/03 financial statements. In this regard, Cabinet resolved (among others) that
departments, trading entities and public entities that received qualified audit opinions and
emphasis of matter submit plans to the Minister of Finance with regard to corrective steps
to be taken. The National Treasury is in the process of interrogating these plans and will
engage with departments, where necessary. 

The Validation Board, established to exercise qualitative control over finance-related
training material of external service providers, has made good progress. To date, the
Board has validated 67 courses stemming from applications submitted by 14 service
providers. All national departments and provincial treasuries are informed regularly of
courses that the Validation Board has accredited.

To further assist departments with financial management capacity-building initiatives, the
National Treasury entered into a Service Level Agreement with the Institute for Public
Finance and Auditing (IPFA) for the roll-out of a large-scale training programme of short
courses to government officials on various aspects related to financial management.
These courses have to be of an acceptable quality and in accordance with the National
Treasury's priorities. Presentation of these courses commenced during April 2003 and
lasted until the end of March 2004; the IPFA presented 55 courses to 953 trainees.

On 8 February 2004, the President announced in his address at the opening of Parliament
that Government had approved a Public Service Anti-Corruption Strategy. This Strategy
entails comprehensive and integrated action against corruption and contributes to
Government's wider national anti-corruption programme. The Strategy consists of nine
strategic considerations, which include:

l A review and consolidation of legislative frameworks;
l Prohibition of corrupt individuals and businesses; and
l Improved management policies and practices.

The implementation of the Strategy is coordinated by a multidepartmental Anti-
Corruption Coordinating Committee (ACCC). The PFMA Implementation unit was
appointed to represent the National Treasury on the Committee. In this regard, the unit
also formed part of the South African delegation that participated in the process of
negotiating a United Nations Convention against Corruption in Vienna, Austria. Cabinet
has recently recommended ratification of the aforementioned Convention.
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Financial Systems – An Integrated Financial Management Systems project office was
established during 2003 to develop a Master Systems Plan (MSP) to guide the
replacement of the current outdated legacy systems in a phased manner. The MSP was
completed at the end of March 2004 and has been submitted for consideration through
decision-making processes.

The MSP deliverables focused on the following areas:

l The interpretation and documentation of Government's financial management user
requirements;

l Recommendations on possible alternative technical options to meet Government's
future systems support requirements; and

l The commercial and financial implications associated with the different options.

Parallel to the development of the MSP, efforts continued to streamline the interim
management of the existing transversal systems, namely BAS, FMS, Logis, Persal and
Vulindlela. These endeavours already made it possible to register substantial savings in
the costs of maintaining these systems.

During the period under review, the process to migrate all national departments and
provinces from FMS to BAS was completed. This paved the way for the final phasing out
of FMS to end the duplication of the systems under the management of the National
Treasury. Simultaneous to the implementation of BAS, the implementation of the new
standard chart of accounts (SCOA) was also completed.
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PROGRAMME 5

FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING
Purpose: To develop new and enhance existing accounting policies and practices to
ensure compliance with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practices
(GRAP) to be issued by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB), which will enable a
transition from the cash basis to an accrual basis of accounting. It also endeavours to
improve the timeliness, accuracy and efficiency of financial reporting; and to provide
mechanisms for improved financial accountability in the public sector.

Measurable objective: The programme aims to improve the quality of financial
accounting and reporting by ensuring that appropriate accounting policies and financial
practices are developed for improved disclosure.

The Office of the Accountant-General consists of the following subprogrammes:

l Financial Reporting for National Accounts is responsible for the accounting of the
National Revenue and Reconstruction and Development Programme (RDP) Fund;
banking services for national Government; the development and implication of
accounting policies; and the preparation of consolidated financial statements.

l Financial Management Improvement incorporates the improvement of financial
management and training, as well as internal audit services. It also provides
assistance to the Institute for Public Finance and Auditing (IPFA).

l Service Charges provides for bank service charges for the deposit accounts of all
departments.

l Audit provides for compensation for shortfalls of statutory bodies and municipalities
in certain instances in terms of the Auditor-General Act (12 of 1995).

Service Delivery Objectives and Indicators

Recent outputs

Financial Reporting for National Accounts – Over the past financial year, the office
assisted all national and provincial departments in completing their financial statements
and annual reports for the financial year ended 31 March. Two new appointments were
made to this subprogramme during the financial year.

A Consolidation Workgroup, comprising the National Treasury, the ASB and the Auditor-
General, was set up to discuss and resolve technical issues and challenges to the
consolidation of national departments, public entities and constitutional entities.
Meetings were held with the chief financial officers of national departments; provincial
departments; and national and provincial public entities to discuss the consolidation
process and impending challenges. A consolidation guide and model/template were
prepared and distributed to all relevant entities for completion.  

Financial Management Improvement – This subprogramme was most affected by the lack
of capacity within the Office. However, in the latter half of the year, five new
appointments were made to enhance the capacity available within this subprogramme. It
was envisaged that the increased capacity would facilitate greater assistance and
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involvement with the provincial treasuries in the implementation and roll-out of financial
management improvement programmes and policies. However, these plans were severely
impacted by the changes in senior management of the Office and the timing of the
appointments.

During the year, the existing accounting policies were reviewed and enhancements
effected, which will to be disseminated for comment and issue during the following
financial year. 

As at the end of March 2004, the first enhancements made to the accounting policies in
support of Standards of GRAP were finalised. These policies were based on the
International Federation of Accountants' (IFAC) International Public Sector Accounting
Standards (IPSAS) and International Accounting Standards (IAS), as well as any
Exposure Drafts (ED) issued by the ASB.

During the year, the ASB issued the following EDs for comment:

l Presentation of financial statements;
l Cash flow statement;
l Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors;
l Framework for the preparation and presentation of financial statements; and
l Generally Recognised Municipal Accounting Practices.

Comments were drafted and timeously submitted as part of the National Treasury's
response to the ASB's standards development process.

Three permanent staff members were appointed after August 2003, which increased
capacity within the Internal Audit unit. The ‘Internal Audit Framework’ was finalised
during the year and forwarded to stakeholders for review. A review was also done of the
status of internal audit and the implementation of audit committees and internal audit
units across all national departments. The results of the review were timeously reported
to the Standing Committee on Public Accounts (SCOPA), as required in terms of the
Third SCOPA Report of 3 March 1999.

During the last quarter of the year, a process was undertaken to develop a Risk
Management Framework (RMF) that would be used as a basis for entity-wide risk
management across national and provincial departments, as contemplated in Section
38(1), and Treasury Regulation 3.2. The RMF has been circulated for comment to a wide
array of stakeholders across the public sector to ensure an all-encompassing process and
that consensus for implementation is achieved. The Framework has been finalised, and
will be reviewed and updated on an annual basis, thus ensuring that the it will, at all times,
reflect the current best practice.

The Office of the Accountant-General co-sponsored the Standard Charts of Account
(SCOA) project with the Budget Office to ensure that the SCOA supported both the ‘New
Economic Reporting Format’ and the current and future financial reporting requirements
of national and provincial departments.  A collaborative road show between various
divisions in the National Treasury was undertaken during November 2003 to officially
introduce the reform to the national and provincial departments. In December 2003, the
Office of the Accountant-General assumed responsibility for version control and chart
maintenance. 
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Transfer payments

Transfer payments were made to the following:

Accounting Standards Board – The ASB was established in terms of the PFMA to develop
GRAP standards for the purposes of implementing the said standards in the public sector
financial management environment. During the financial year, the ASB drafted its work
plan for the development of standards, which has been approved by the Minister of
Finance, and has developed and released three standards for the Minister's approval.
Commentary and discussion on the initial exposure drafts have been forwarded to the
ASB by stakeholders including the OAG, and incorporated into the final standards
awaiting the Minister's approval.

Office of the Auditor-General – Transfer payments are made to the Auditor-General to
defray audit expenses related to the audit of departmental books. 

Written confirmation has been received by the OAG that the entities to whom transfers
have been made implemented effective, efficient and transparent financial management
and internal control systems, as required by the PFMA.

PROGRAMME 5
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PROGRAMME 6

PROVINCIAL AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT TRANSFERS
Purpose: To manage the Provincial Infrastructure Grant and the Local Government
Financial Management and Restructuring Grants. These conditional grants are
appropriated on the National Treasury Vote.

Measurable objective: The Provincial Infrastructure Grant, which was introduced four
years ago, aims to boost provincial infrastructure investment and to serve as a catalyst for
introducing good practices in relation to the planning and monitoring of infrastructure
projects.

The Local Government Financial Management Grant aims to support the implementation
of financial management reforms aimed at enhancing transparency and accountability,
while the Local Government Restructuring Grant is used for restructuring initiatives in
large municipalities.

Service Delivery Objectives and Indicators

Recent outputs 

The Provincial Infrastructure Grant was introduced in 2000/01 to enable provinces to
address infrastructure needs in the areas of roads, school buildings and health facilities,
and to support rural development.  The key requirement of the Grant is that provincial
budgets should reflect growth in the budgets for and spending on infrastructure for the
targeted sectors. It is a general conditional grant to boost provincial capital budgets, and
hence its reporting requirements are not restricted to the Grant itself, but extended to the
entire capital budgets of provinces.

Total capital spending in provinces in 2003/04 amounted to an estimated R10,1 billion,
which was considerably more than the R2,5 billion Provincial Infrastructure Grant. This
represents an increase of about 28 per cent on the R7,9 billion provinces spent on capital
in 2002/03, and is more than double the R4 billion spent in 2000/01, indicating the
success of the Grant in continuing to gear up provincial capital spending. The sectors
targeted by the Grant account for about 80 per cent of provincial capital spending
(excluding housing).

While three provinces (Free State, Gauteng, Western Cape) received all their instalments
for the Grant as scheduled, some instalments were delayed to the other six provinces due
to non-compliance with the reporting conditions of the Grant.  However, all provinces
finally complied fully, and received their total grants by the end of the financial year.  The
amounts per province are outlined in the table below, and in Annexure 1B in the Notes to
the Financial Statements.
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The Local Government Financial Management Grant and the Local Government
Restructuring Grant are two separate grants, assisting  municipalities in implementing
fiscal and financial management, and restructuring reforms. Since the inception of the
Financial Management Grant in 2000, there has been marked improvement in the
financial management practices among municipalities, particularly in the areas of
budgeting, reporting, accounting and in building financial management capacity.
Building on the success of a pilot phase, which was implemented in seven pilot
municipalities in 2000, the Grant was successfully extended to 63 municipalities by 2003,
exceeding the target of 37 municipalities. The 2003/04 financial year saw the coming into
effect of the Municipal Finance Management Act (56 of 2003) (MFMA) on 1 July 2004. 

To facilitate skills development and to support fiscal and financial reforms, municipalities
have used the Grant to employ around 160 financial management interns. This will
continue to grow in the future as we see municipalities addressing their skills shortages.
Another key initiative is the completion and submission of a unit standards based
qualification for municipal financial management for registration with the South African
Qualifications Authority (SAQA), to underpin the implementation of skills development
in municipalities. 

The Municipal Finance Management Technical Assistance Project (MFMTAP) also
provides direct fiscal and financial support to municipalities. The Project is the result of
an agreement between the South African Government and the International Bank for
Reconstruction and Development. The agreement funds technical finance advisors from
around the world, who are posted at selected municipalities for a period of two years. The
advisors bring with them practical international experience with the objective of building
capacity in budgeting, financial management and project management skills within
municipalities. All techniques developed and lessons learned are made available to local
government via the Internet. The MFMTAP started in 2002 and nine advisors were placed
in municipalities by 2003.  Moreover, the programme has served to solicit support from
other donor countries in the placement of two German-sponsored advisors and six UK-
funded advisors, all working on the municipal finance management programme. An
amount of R210 million was disbursed during the financial year under review.

The Local Government Restructuring Grant is intended to support restructuring and the
modernisation of large municipalities in their efforts to be more effective and efficient,
and to function in a fiscally sustainable manner. Previous successful applicants include
the Msunduzi, Mangaung and Cacadu municipalities, which are monitored for
compliance on a quarterly basis. 

PROGRAMME 6
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Following successful discussions with eligible municipalities, 12 new applications were
received in 2003/04. These were from Buffalo City, Nelson Mandela Metro, Emfuleni
Municipality, Ekurhuleni Municipality, eThekwini Municipality, Polokwane
Municipality, Sol Plaatje Municipality, City of Cape Town, City of Tshwane, uMhlatuze
Municipality, Matjhabeng and Mogale City. A thorough review and assessment process
was undertaken, which resulted in two successful applications, namely those of Buffalo
City and Emfuleni. Each received a grant of R130 million over a four-year period. The
first tranche was transferred to them, amounting to R40 million each. 

The other ten applications were not successful, but interim, one-year allocations were
made to the City of Cape Town, Ekurhuleni, eThekwini, Nelson Mandela and the City of
Tshwane, totalling R160 million. That was to support specific restructuring initiatives,
and to assist those municipalities in submitting more comprehensive restructuring
applications in the next financial year. Other applications like uMhlatuze, Sol Plaatje,
Polokwane and Matjhabeng received once-off allocations, totalling R45 million, to
augment a previous seed funding allocation, and to assist them in implementing their
restructuring applications.

To ensure measurable compliance with grant conditions, successful applicants have been
given four years instead of three to achieve benchmarks. This will allow more time for
compliance with the benchmarks and minimise delays and  payments being held back.
The Restructuring Grant is anticipated to continue for a further four years and will be
subjected to a progress review in 2006/07.

R45 million was withheld from Mangaung Municipality for non-compliance with
conditions during the financial year. These funds will be transferred in the next financial
year, once conditions are met.

More information on the amounts received by each municipality are outlined in Annexure
1A in the Notes to the Financial Statements.
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PROGRAMME 7

CIVIL AND MILITARY PENSIONS, CONTRIBUTIONS TO
FUNDS AND OTHER BENEFITS

Purpose: To provide for pension and post-retirement medical-benefit obligations to
former employees of state departments and bodies, and for disability benefits for former
members of the statutory and non-statutory forces.

Measurable objective: The programme aims to ensure the payment of benefits and
awards to beneficiaries of departments, state-aided bodies and other specified bodies in
terms of various statutes, collective-bargaining agreements and other commitments.

There are two subprogrammes:

l Civil Pensions and Contributions to Medical Schemes provides for the payment of
benefits out of pension and other funds to the beneficiaries of various public-sector
bodies in terms of various statutes, collective-bargaining agreements and other
commitments. The subprogramme also provides for the payment of special pensions
to persons who have made sacrifices or served the public interest in the establishment
of a democratic constitutional order.

l Military Pensions and Other Benefits provides for the payment of military pension
benefits and medical claims arising from treatment for disability, medical assistive
devices, and other related expenses, in keeping with statutory requirements and
commitments.

Service Delivery Objectives and Indicators

Recent outputs 

Through ongoing review, maintenance and enhancement in relation to administrative
systems, it became clear that applications for the payment and administration of civil and
military pensions and contributions to medical schemes needed to be re-engineered.
Business analysts have compiled draft functional specifications related to work-flow
processes in the administration of special pensions, military pensions and ad hoc medical
expense claims, and these are being reviewed. 

Pensions Administration – the operational arm of the Government Employees Pension
Fund (GEPF) – administers a range of benefit and pension schemes for Government on
an agency basis. The GEPF is self-funded and produces its own strategic plan and annual
report. 

Civil Pensions and Contributions to Funds ensures the timely payment of government
contributions to medical aid schemes in respect of civil pensioners, surviving spouses,
dependants and civil pensioners who were not members of medical schemes during their
period of service (by special concession). It also ensures payment to medical schemes in
respect of pensioners and widows of the former Development Boards and the National
Film Board. 

Following an in-depth investigation, the method of payment of contributions to medical
schemes is being restructured, enhancing the reconciliation process to ensure timeous and
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correct payment. Pensions Administration also aims to implement a new medical-scheme
fee structure to ensure compliance with industry standards. Part of this process will
include the appointment of a health risk manager to manage the business relationship
between the participating entities. The team has implemented an appropriate risk model
to facilitate adequate actuarial modelling and costing of payments.

The programme is also responsible for the payment of compensation benefits to
government employees in respect of temporary, total or partial disablement, or as a result
of injuries sustained on duty and, in cases of death, to dependants of such beneficiaries in
accordance with the Compensation for Occupational Injuries and Diseases Act (130 of
1993).

The payment of special pensions to persons who have made sacrifices or served the
public interest in the establishment of a democratic constitutional order also forms part of
the subprogramme. This includes members of any armed or military force not established
by or under any law, and which is under the authority and control of, or associated with,
and promotes the objectives of political organisations or dependants of such persons in
terms of the Special Pensions Act (69 of 1996).

The Act gives effect to Section 189 of the Interim Constitution regarding the prescription
of rules for determining persons who are entitled to receive special pensions and to
provide for the establishment of structures to implement the Act – that is, the Special
Pensions Board and the Special Pensions Review Board.

In addition to recent amendments, the special pensions process will be reviewed over the
next year. The review will examine the special pensions benefit structure and the required
legislative amendments to facilitate implementation.

Military Pensions and Other Benefits ensures the timeous payment of military pensions
to ex-soldiers who were involved in the pre-1914 wars, the First and Second World Wars,
the Korean War, post-1960 wars; national servicemen; South African Citizen Force
members who participated in the Border War; and members from the former non-
statutory forces or their dependants, in accordance with the Military Pensions Act (84 of
1976).

Other benefits expended include payments to ex-service personnel for medical claims for
disability, medical appliances and subsistence and travelling allowances in terms of the
Military Pensions Act, and payment of an administration grant to the South African
Legion to attend to the socio-economic needs of war veterans. The Legion's involvement
includes facilitating communication through the publication of policy changes, as well as
acting as a mediator between the Treasury and pensioners for purposes of addressing
queries and applications for pensions.
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PROGRAMME 8 

FISCAL TRANSFERS
Purpose: To provide for funds to public authorities and other institutions in terms of
various legal provisions governing the financial relations between Government and the
particular authority or institution, including international development institutions of
which Government is a member.

Measurable objective: The programme aims to meet certain international and other
statutory financial obligations, to meet the costs of raising revenue for the purpose of the
state effectively and efficiently, and to finance intelligence gathering and other secret
services in the national interest.

Domestic transfers are made to:

l The Development Fund of the Development Bank of Southern Africa for the micro-
credit initiative;

l The South African Revenue Service (SARS), which is responsible for the collection
of revenue in terms of the South African Revenue Service Act (34 of 1997);

l The Financial and Fiscal Commission (FFC), a constitutional body charged with
making recommendations about the equitable division of revenue;

l The Secret Services Account, used to finance the activities of the National
Intelligence Agency (NIA), the South African Secret Service and certain activities of
the Detective Service of the South African Police Services (SAPS); and

l The Financial Intelligence Centre (FIC), which is charged with assisting in
combating money laundering and strengthening financial regulation capacity.

Foreign transfer payments, made in terms of Government's international obligations, are
made to:

l Lesotho and Namibia in terms of the Common Monetary Area (CMA) Agreement;
l The World Bank Group;
l The Highly Indebted Poor Countries (HIPC) Initiative of the International Monetary

Fund (IMF);
l The African Development Bank (ADB); and
l The Commonwealth Fund for Technical Assistance.

Service Delivery Objectives and Indicators

Recent outputs

Lesotho and Namibia – South Africa makes rand-denominated fiscal transfers to Lesotho
and Namibia under the CMA Agreement. The CMA is a decentralised monetary union in
which monetary policy is effectively set by South Africa, but where smaller members
have the right to issue their own currencies. There are no restrictions on transfers of funds
within the CMA, and while the smaller countries' currencies are convertible into rands at
a one-to-one rate, they are not legal tender in South Africa. As the dominant member,
South Africa has agreed to share seigniorage on the basis of an estimate of the rand
currency circulating in the other two member countries. The fiscal transfers to Lesotho
and Nambia over the 2004 Medium-Term Expenditure Framework (MTEF) period are,
therefore, made in respect of the sharing of seigniorage collections.
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Development Bank of Southern Africa for the micro-credit initiative – The National
Treasury has been working closely with the Development Bank of Southern Africa
(DBSA) and the Department of Trade and Industry in the design of a pilot Apex Fund for
micro-credit. The Apex Fund will extend micro-credit via Micro-Finance Intermediaries
(MFIs) to poor and low-income households and ensure that they receive sufficient
guidance and support to use the loan to improve their livelihoods. This will be a pilot fund
that will run for four years. It will look into different lending methodologies and monitor
the impact of grants and loans. It also aims to build the capacity of MFIs and rural
microenterprises to enable them to reach the very poor with basic financial services, and
to empower them to use the funding to overcome their poverty. The Fund is also an
initiative by Government to introduce an enabling environment that will focus directly on
eradicating extreme poverty and enabling the poor to access basic financial services. The
National Treasury has set aside R160,0 million between 2003/04 and 2006/07 towards
this endeavour.

World Bank Group – The Minister of Finance represents South Africa on the Board of
Governors or political executive of the World Bank Group, as South Africa is a shareholder
or member country of the Group. Over the past two years, the Minister has served as the
chairman of the Development Committee. The Committee's mandate is to advise the World
Bank Group's Board of Governors and the International Monetary Fund (IMF) on critical
international development issues and on the financial resources required to promote
economic development in developing countries. Towards the end of 2003, the Minister was
requested to serve another two-year term as chairman. A further two-year term will enable
the Minister to consolidate progress made and to advance issues critical to African
development. In particular, these include enhancing the voice and representation of
developing countries in the decision-making processes of the Bank and the Fund, and on
the New Partnership for Africa’s Development (NEPAD) development agenda.

Highly Indebted Poor Country (HIPC) initiative – As part of its international
development commitments, South Africa contributes to the HIPC initiative. The initiative
provides debt relief to the poorest countries, which are only eligible for highly
concessional assistance from the World Bank and IMF. In turn, HIPC countries have to
ensure the sustained implementation of integrated poverty reduction and economic
reform programmes. Recent reviews of HIPC show that only eight countries have reached
the HIPC completion point, namely Benin, Bolivia, Burkina Faso, Mali, Mauritania,
Mozambique, Tanzania and Uganda. In nominal terms, debt relief provided to these eight
countries amounts to US$14,6 billion. A further 27 countries, or 71,1 per cent of the 38
countries that qualify for assistance under HIPC, are receiving partial debt relief,
depending on progress made in poverty reduction and the implementation of economic
reforms. Debt relief provided to these countries amounts to approximately US$36,4
billion in nominal terms. (The Democratic Republic of Congo became eligible for debt
relief in July 2003 and will receive debt relief to the approximate nominal amount of US$
10,3 billion.) Eleven countries (or 28,9 per cent) are not yet considered eligible for debt
relief as they have not implemented the appropriate reform programmes.

African Development Bank – South Africa is a shareholder of the African Development
Fund (ADF) of the African Development Bank (ADB). In 2004/05, South Africa will
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participate in the Tenth Replenishment of the ADF. In addition, Government monitors
progress in the ADB regarding the provision of loans to parastatals on the basis of the
strength of their balance sheets and without the backing of a sovereign guarantee.

Secret Services – The Secret Services have been established to gather, collate and analyse
domestic, foreign and crime intelligence in order to identify any threat or potential threat
to the security of South Africa or its people.

In 2002/03, the South African National Academy of Intelligence was established to
develop a corps of competent intelligence professionals. The successful implementation
of the Regulation of Interception of Communication and Provision of Communication-
related Information Act (70 of 2002) will be a priority of the NIA and the Intelligence
division of the SAPS in 2004/05.

The Secret Services will be strengthening their foreign representation by opening new
offices and increasing the number of members abroad. In 2003/04, the Secret Services
had a presence in 55 countries in and participated in peacekeeping and conflict resolution
initiatives.

One of the core functions of the Intelligence division of the SAPS is to investigate and
expose individuals who are involved in organised criminal activities by using undercover
methodology. The highlight of 2003/04 was the successful infiltration and arrest of the
perpetrators in the Boeremag right-wing extremist movement. This division also focuses
on criminal organisations involved in crimes relating to drugs; the trafficking of firearms
and vehicles; corruption; commercial crime; cyber crime and child abuse.

Commonwealth Fund for Technical Cooperation – South Africa has been a regular
contributor to the Commonwealth Fund for Technical Cooperation (CFTC) since 1994
through the Department of Foreign Affairs. The Fund's primary function is to serve as the
development finance arm of the Commonwealth. As of 2003/04, transfers to the Fund
will be made from the National Treasury's vote.

Transfer payments

PROGRAMME 8
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Report of the Audit Committee

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2004.

1. General 

The Audit Committee's (the Committee's) function is primarily to assist the
Accounting Officer in discharging his responsibilities relative to the Public
Finance Management Act (1 of 1999) as amended.  The Audit Committee's
Terms of Reference set out specific responsibilities as delegated by the
Accounting Officer to the Committee.  The Committee has been so constituted
as to ensure its independence with seven external members.

The Committee has met six times for the period under review:

* Prof C Koornhof, Ms J Matlala and Ms M Vuso were appointed to the Audit Committee with effect from
30 January 2004

2. Audit Committee responsibility

The Audit Committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities
arising from section 38(1)(a) of the PFMA and Treasury Regulation 3.1.13 and
27(1)(10). The Audit Committee also reports that it has adopted appropriate
formal terms of reference as its audit committee charter, has regulated its affairs
in compliance with this charter and has discharged all its responsibilities as
contained therein.

3. The effectiveness of internal control 

The system of controls is designed to provide cost effective assurance that
assets are safeguarded and that liabilities and working capital are efficiently
managed. From the various reports of the internal auditors, the Audit Report on
the Annual Financial Statements, the matters of emphasis and management
letter of the Auditor-General, it was noted that no significant or material non

Audit Committee Meetings 2004

Name of member Attended Apologies Total

Mr Ignatius Sehoole (Chairperson) 5 1 6

Dr Len Konar 6 0 6

Mr Johnson N Njeke 4 2 6

Mr Jeff van Rooyen 5 1 6

Prof Carolina Koornhof* 0 1 1

Ms Joyce Matlala* 0 1 1

Ms Matsotso Vuso* 1 0 1 
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compliance with prescribed policies and procedures have been reported. In line
with the PFMA and the King II Report requirements, the Internal Audit
Function provides the Audit Committee and management with assurance that
the internal controls are appropriate and effective. This is achieved by means of
the risk management process, as well as the identification of corrective actions
and suggested enhancements to the controls and processes. 

However, the Committee notes with concern that the deficiencies in the controls
over contributions to medical schemes, highlighted by the Auditor-General in
his audit report, have not been resolved.  The Committee has taken cognisance
of management's commitment and actions to resolve and address the
weaknesses highlighted by the Auditor-General, and in this regard, reiterates its
commitment to assist the Accounting Officer and management in their
endeavours to improve internal controls.

4. Evaluation of Financial Statements

The Audit Committee has:
l Reviewed and discussed with the Auditor-General and the Accounting

Officer the audited annual financial statements to be included in the annual
report;

l Reviewed the Auditor-General's management letter and management's
response thereto;

l Reviewed the accounting policies and practices; and
l Reviewed significant adjustments resulting from the audit.

The Committee concurs and accepts the conclusions of the Auditor-General on
the annual financial statements and is of the opinion that the audited annual
financial statements be accepted and read together with the report of the
Auditor-General.

Ignatius Sehoole
Chairperson of the Audit Committee
Date: 11 August 2004
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Report by the Accounting Officer to the Executive Authority and Parliament of the
Republic of South Africa.

1. General review of the state of financial affairs

The National Treasury manages its service delivery and implements its broad
priorities through the activities of its eight programmes. Ongoing fiscal reform
is aimed at promoting sustainable growth and development, poverty reduction,
enhancing budgetary transparency and improving financial management. The
Department continues to develop systems to improve the monitoring and
reporting of public expenditure and enhancing transparency and accountability,
thus contributing to improved service delivery over the medium term.

Vote structure

The National Treasury's operational budget of R714,3 million (2002/03: R634,8
million) consists of programmes one to five: Administration; Economic
Planning and Budget Management; Asset and Liability Management; Financial
Management and Systems; and Financial Accounting and Reporting. The
National Treasury's vote is dominated by the remaining programmes, which
account for transfers and committed payments to provinces, local government
and other institutions under programmes six to eight: Provincial and Local
Government Transfers; Civil and Military Pensions, Contributions to Funds
and Other Benefits; and Fiscal Transfers. These transfers and payments
amounted to R11,879 billion for the 2003/04 financial year (2002/03: R9,722
billion), or 94 per cent of the total budget.

In 2003/04, the National Treasury's adjusted appropriation increased in total by
7 per cent as a result of R419,3 million rolled over from 2002/03, mainly for the
transfers to Lesotho and Namibia and to local government for restructuring, and
an additional amount of R400 million for additional service benefits for retiring
members of Parliament and members of provincial legislatures.

A saving of R187,6 million (2002/03: R113,5 million) was recorded against the
operational budget.  This is mainly due to a saving of R43 million on personnel
and R114,3 million on professional and special services

Programme structures

Administration provides strategic management and administrative support to
the National Treasury, giving political and managerial leadership to the work of
the National Treasury. In addition, the Corporate Services division contributes
to the administration and smooth running of the National Treasury, and seeks to
create a productive and creative working environment.  The administration
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programme comprises the Minister, Deputy Minister, Management and
Corporate Services subprogrammes.

Expenditure for Administration totalled R90,4 million (2002/03: 106,9 million),
a decrease of 15,4 per cent. The decrease in expenditure is mainly attributable
to savings in respect of personnel and concomitant expenditure owing to the
delay in the filling of posts, and also the saving on professional and special
services and equipment, due to the extended period in the refurbishing of the
240 Vermeulen Street Building.

In 2003/04 R9 million was rolled over from 2002/03 to finalise the
refurbishment and renovation of 240 Vermeulen Street.

Administration makes provision for a legal budget of R4 million per year to
assist in the passage and implementation of significant pieces of legislation.

Economic Planning and Budget Management provides for professional
advice and support to the Minister of Finance on economic and fiscal policy,
international financial relations, financial regulation, tax policy,
intergovernmental relations, public finance development and management of
the annual budget process. These functions are organised into four separate sub-
programmes: Public Finance; Budget Coordination; Intergovernmental
Relations; and Economic Policy.

Expenditure for Economic Planning and Budget Management totalled R105,4
million (2002/03: R86,4 million), an increase of 22 per cent, mainly as a result
of strengthening capacity in the National Treasury's policy analysis and
advisory functions and for improved coordination with provinces,
municipalities, other national departments, government agencies and
international organisations.  An additional contribution to the expenditure is the
operational costs of the Amnesty Unit, chaired by Advocate Madlanga,
established in June 2003.

This programme also made provision for the new Project Development Facility
Trading Account to contribute to the funding of advisory services on public-
private partnership projects.

Asset and Liability Management is responsible for the prudent management of
Government's financial assets and liabilities, including the domestic and foreign
debt portfolios. There are five subprogrammes: Management; Asset
Management; Liability Management; Financial Operations; and Strategy and
Risk Management.

Expenditure for Asset and Liability Management totalled R51,9 million
(2002/03: R20,1 million), an increase of 158 per cent. The growth in
expenditure is mainly owing to the increase in the compensation of employees

81



National Treasury 82

NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE 8

MANAGEMENT REPORT 
for the year ended 31 March 2004

because of the restructuring of the division, and also includes a payment for the
settlement of debt incurred by the former Bophuthatswana government. The
increase has facilitated the expansion of the subprogramme’s functions and
posts, the implementation of new risk management approaches, the focus on
corporate governance, and the development and implementation of an
integrated information system.

Financial Management and Systems is responsible for managing and
regulating Government's supply-chain processes, implementing and
maintaining standardised financial systems, and coordinating the
implementation of the Public Finance Management Act (1 of 1999) and related
capacity-building initiatives.  This programme consists of four sub-
programmes: Management; Supply Chain Management; PFMA
Implementation and Coordination; and Financial Systems.

Expenditure for Financial Management and Systems totalled R234,3 million
(2002/03: R258 million), a decrease of 9,2 per cent. The saving was mainly
owing to a directive by the Budget Council that the process for the
acquisitioning of new systems should be delayed. The delay was necessary to
allow time to complete a coherent systems renewal strategy and to determine
and document Government's user requirements. This process was completed at
the end of the 2003/04 financial year and the systems renewal proposals are
currently in the process of being submitted for consideration by the Budget
Council. The main expenditure items included in this programme were
personnel expenditure amounting to R20,2 million and professional and special
services amounting to R208,6 million. The increased costs for the Financial
Systems subprogramme is mainly owing to the ongoing roll-out of the Basic
Accounting System.

Financial Accounting and Reporting aims to develop new, and enhance
existing accounting policies and practices to ensure compliance with Generally
Recognised Accounting Practice standards, which would enable a transition
from the cash basis of accounting, improve the timeliness, accuracy and
efficiency of financial reporting, and provide mechanisms for improved
financial accountability in the public sector.  The programme consists of six
subprogrammes: Financial Reporting for National Accounts; Financial
Management Improvement; Investment of Public Monies; Service Charges
(Commercial Banks); Audit Statutory Bodies; and Contingent Liabilities:
Reinsurance Liabilities.

Expenditure for Financial Accounting and Reporting totalled R44,7 million
(2002/03: R49,8 million), a decrease of 10,2 per cent.  The saving is mainly
owing to the delay in the filling of posts and incurring less than anticipated
expenditure on professional and special services. The main expenditure items
included in this programme were personnel expenditure amounting to 
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R3,9 million, professional and special services amounting to R16,5 million and
transfer payments amounting to R15 million.    

Provincial and Local Government Transfers manages three conditional grants
to the provincial and local spheres of government: Provincial Infrastructure
Grant (Annexure 1B); Local Government Restructuring Grant (Annexure 1A);
and Local Government Financial Management Grant (Annexure 1A). 

The capital transfers for provincial infrastructure have been in existence since
2000/01.  The allocation for 2003/04 has increased from R1, 950 billion in
2002/03 to R2, 534 billion.

The Local Government Financial Management and Restructuring Grants were
introduced in 2000/01 to fund financial management reforms and restructuring
initiatives in municipalities.  An amount of R704,8 million was transferred to
133 municipalities in 2003/04.

The Local Government Restructuring Grant is a demand-driven grant with
municipalities providing benchmarks and conditions against which they will be
measured.  Disbursements are based on achieving outputs. Many first time
applications from eligible municipalities were of a poor quality and standard.
An extension of the deadline for submission to 31 July 2003 resulted in vastly
improved applications. After an intensive and lengthy evaluation and review
process, new multi-year agreements of R130 million were signed with Emfuleni
Municipality and Buffalo City Municipality, respectively, of which R40 million
each was transferred in 2003/04. In addition, a total of R45 million once-off
funding was approved and transferred to Matjhabeng, Sol Plaatje, Polokwane
and uMhlatuze municipalities, while interim funding of R160 million was
approved and transferred to all the metropolitan municipalities, excluding the
City of Johannesburg, which joined the programme in 2000/01.

The Local Government Financial Management Grant is provided to
municipalities to support broad financial reform in the local government sphere
as part of the implementation of the Municipal Finance Management Act.

In 2000 a pilot project was started, to develop the principles in selected
municipalities. The number of participating municipalities grew from the initial
seven in 2000/01 to 133 in 2003/04. National roll-out began in 2003/04 and by
the end of 2004/05 all municipalities will be participating in the programme.
The programme provides for the gearing of international support and direct
allocations to municipalities. 

This amounted to R50 million, R60 million, R154 million and R211 million in
2000/01, 2001/02, 2002/03 and 2003/04 respectively. During 2003,
international financial advisers were placed in selected municipalities to
support the implementation of the reforms. Furthermore, to facilitate skills
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development in financial management, municipalities have used the grant to
appoint more than 160 municipal finance management interns.

Civil and Military Pensions, Contributions to Funds and Other Benefits
provide for the payment of pension and other benefits in the public sector.

l Civil Pensions and Contributions to Funds provides for the payment of
benefits out of pension and other funds to beneficiaries of various public
sector bodies in terms of different statutes, collective bargaining agree-
ments and other commitments.

l Military Pensions and Other Benefits provides for the payment of military
pension benefits and medical claims arising from treatment for disability,
medical assistive-devices, and other related expenses, in keeping with
statutory commitments.

This programme, excluding fiscal transfers, carries the largest expenditure
burden on the National Treasury's Vote, growing from R1,896 billion in
2002/03 to R2,288 billion in 2003/04. Special pensions payments increased
after 2001/02 as a result of the acceleration of the adjudication of applications
because of the appointment of a full-time Special Pensions Board and a Special
Pensions Review Board.

An additional R400 million was allocated to the Civil Pensions and
Contributions to Funds subprogramme during the 2003 Adjusted Estimates for
the additional service benefits for retiring members of Parliament and members
of provincial legislatures. The saving was mainly due to Pensions
Administration receiving fewer medical claims and processing less special
pension payments.

Fiscal Transfers makes funds available to public authorities and other
institutions in terms of various legal provisions governing the financial relations
between Government and the particular authority or institution, including
international development institutions of which Government is a member.

Domestic transfers under this programme were made to:
l The Development Fund of the Development Bank of Southern Africa for the

micro-credit initiative;
l The South African Revenue Service, which is responsible for collection of

revenue in terms of the South African Revenue Service Act (34 of 1997);
l The Financial and Fiscal Commission, a constitutional body charged with

making recommendations about the equitable division of revenue;
l The Secret Services Account, used to finance the activities of the National

Intelligence Agency, the South African Secret Service, and certain activities
of the Detective Service of the South African Police Service; and

l The Financial Intelligence Centre, which is charged with assisting in
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combatting money laundering and strengthening financial regulation
capacity.

Foreign transfer payments, made in terms of Government's international
obligations, were made to:
l Lesotho and Namibia in terms of the Common Monetary Area Agreement;
l The World Bank Group;
l The Highly Indebted Poor Countries Initiative of the International Monetary

Fund;
l The African Development Bank; and
l Commonwealth Fund for Technical Assistance.

Fiscal transfers make up 49,9 per cent of the National Treasury's expenditure,
with the bulk of the transfers made to the South African Revenue Service and
the Secret Services.  Expenditure increased from R5,174 billion in 2002/03 to
R6,040 billion in 2003/04 as a result of additional allocations to the Secret
Services and South African Revenue Service.  

Revenue received included administrative fees arising from loans being
covered by guarantees and costs associated with Government's issuing of
guarantees, sales of departmental publications and commission on insurance
premiums deducted from employees' salaries.  Departmental receipts also
included interest on Government deposits and dividends received from the
South African Reserve Bank and interest from tax and loans accounts from the
four major commercial banks. 

The receipts from sale of capital assets include funds received from Secret
Services for the sale of land.  Financial transactions include the repayment of
loans by the Auditor-General and recovery of departmental debt from previous
years.  All revenue is transferred to the National Revenue Fund.

For the year under review, departmental receipts amounting to R2,131 billion
were received and R2, 138 billion transferred to the National Revenue Fund.   

2. Services rendered by the National Treasury

The National Treasury is in essence a financial and administrative service
department, and as such does not render goods or services directly to the public. 

3. Capacity constraints 

Driven by the shortage of skills in the economic and financial fields in the
labour market, the focus for 2003/04 for the National Treasury was to develop
these skills internally.  This was done through the National Treasury's
education, training and development strategy that focuses on enhancing
employees' skills at all levels.  To this end, the National Treasury implemented
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an internship programme, which is aimed at developing the young labour force
with financial and economic skills. The interns will be equipped with the skills
that the National Treasury will need in the future.

During 2003/04, the focus was also on enhancing the human resources
processes, particularly the recruitment process, to attract employees with the
required competencies.  The new performance management system was also
implemented during this period to further determine the key deliverables and
competencies for employees to deliver on the mandate of the National Treasury.
The focus is on creating a culture of high performance.

4. Utilisation of donor funds

Local and foreign aid assistance received in cash during the year amounted to
R7,1 million (2002/03: R6,8 million) relating to various projects. Expenditure
incurred amounted to R5,7 million (2002/03: R5,9 million). Assistance in kind
in 2003/04 amounted to an estimated R46,1 million (2002/03: R30,9 million).

5. Public entities

A number of entities report to the Minister of Finance through arms-length
governance arrangements. This allows reporting institutions the autonomy that
is required to meet their mandates, while their links to the Ministry ensure
strategic alignment with Government's policy goals. These entities are
responsible for preparing their own annual reports, which are tabled separately
in Parliament (Annexure 1C and 1D). These public entities are as follows:

South African Revenue Service 

The South African Revenue Service, a Schedule 3 entity reporting to the
Minister of Finance.  Within the context of Government's priorities, the South
African Revenue Service is mindful of its broader role and is fully committed
to ensuring adequate revenue collection to support these priorities.  

The Development Bank of Southern Africa 

The Development Bank of Southern Africa, a Schedule 2 major public entity, is
governed by the Development Bank of Southern Africa Act (13 of 1997). The
Development Bank of Southern Africa is a development finance institution
wholly owned by the South African Government.  Its mandate is to promote
sustainable development through funding physical, social and economic
infrastructure.  
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Financial Services Board 

The Financial Services Board is a statutory body in terms of the Financial
Services Board Act (97 of 1990). It exercises control over the activities of non-
banking financial services and acts in an advisory capacity to the Minister of
Finance. The Board is financed by the financial services industry, with no
contribution from Government. The Board supervises those institutions and
services, in terms of 16 parliamentary Acts, which entrust regulatory functions
to the Registrar of Long- and Short-term Insurance, Friendly Societies, Pension
Funds, Collective Investment Schemes, Stock Exchanges and Financial
Markets and Financial Services Providers.  Functions include regulatory control
over insider trading; trust property held by certain institutions; and central
security depositories responsible for the safe custody of securities.  The Board
is also responsible for the financial supervision of the Road Accident Fund. 

Public Investment Commissioners 

The Public Investment Commissioners is a statutory body governed in terms of
the Public Investment Commissioners Act (45 of 1984). The Minister is
responsible for appointing the board, which oversees the activities of the
secretariat and its investment portfolio. The Public Investment Commissioners
is effectively self-funded. The Public Investment Commissioners invests and
manages surplus funds on behalf of various public-sector bodies.  

Financial Intelligence Centre 

The Financial Intelligence Centre Act (38 of 2001) (FICA) provides for the
formation of the Financial Intelligence Centre, the aim of which is to track
irregular financial practices, especially the laundering of the proceeds of crime. 

FICA and the regulations dealing with the duties of identification, record
keeping and implementing internal rules took effect on 30 June 2003. In
summary, this legislation places an obligation on financial and other institutions
to verify that they know who their clients are and to keep proper records of their
clients' identities. These provisions are aimed at, among others, establishing
control measures within these institutions to protect them from abuse by
criminals who wish to conceal or disguise their proceeds of crime. These
measures form part of a broader objective to combat money laundering and
large-scale criminality. The Financial Intelligence Centre is taking active steps
to create awareness and provide guidance to accountable institutions,
supervisory bodies and law-enforcement authorities.

Considerable progress continues to be made in implementing FICA, which
envisages the development of an anti-money laundering environment in South
Africa, largely in accordance with international standards set by the Financial
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Action Task Force. South Africa became a member of the Financial Action Task
Force in June 2003. South Africa is a member of the Eastern and Southern
Africa Anti-Money Laundering Group (ESAAMLG) and actively participates
in its programmes.  In addition, the Financial Intelligence Centre became a
member of the Egmont Group of Financial Intelligence Units in July 2003 after
an assessment of the Financial Intelligence Centre was conducted.

South African Special Risks Insurance Association (SASRIA)

SASRIA Limited was established in terms of the Conversion of SASRIA Act
(134 of 1998) and is listed as a Schedule 3B public entity reporting to
Government. It is a short-term insurance company that provides cover for
damages caused by politically malicious acts, riots, strikes and public disorders.

Accounting Standards Board

The Accounting Standards Board was established in the latter part of 2002 and
is mainly responsible for the implementation of Generally Recognised
Accounting Practice in Government. During 2003/04 progress was made in
developing a Framework for Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements. In addition, several draft standards were issued for public comment.

6. Trading Entity

Project Development Facility

The Project Development Facility (PDF) is a newly established trading entity
managed by the Public Private Partnership (PPP) unit of the National Treasury.

The PDF's role is to assist with the costs relating to transaction advisors under
the terms of the contract between a department or public entity bound by the
Public Finance Management Act and the transaction advisor. After the financial
close of the PPP procured by the institution using the services of the transaction
advisers, the disbursed funds are recovered from the successful private party
bidder.

The PDF policy board establishes the PDF priorities on an annual basis.  The
PDF will fund a range of small, medium and large projects across all sectors,
although priority will be given to projects in the social sectors.  

7. Other organisations to whom transfer payments have been
made

As mentioned previously, the National Treasury, through its Fiscal Transfers
programme, made funds available to public authorities and other institutions in
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terms of various legal provisions governing the financial relations between
Government and the particular authority or institution, including international
development institutions of which Government is a member (Annexure 1C and
1D).

8. Events after the reporting date

Payments to the value of R99 million (2002/03 R101,1 million) were processed
during April 2004, which relate to the 2003/04 financial year. These payments
are not included in the Annual Financial Statements for the 2003/04 financial
year, which are prepared on the modified cash basis of accounting.

9. Progress with financial management improvement, includ-
ing corporate governance arrangements

The National Treasury has a fully functional Audit Committee (AC) and a Risk
Management Committee (RMC). Both Committees operate within approved
written terms of reference and meet regularly during the year. The membership
of the AC was increased from five to seven external members during the year.   

Regular risk assessments are conducted in conjunction with the outsourced
internal audit function (IAF) in terms of the National Treasury's risk
management framework.  Risks identified are documented and reported to the
Accounting Officer and are monitored by the RMC and AC.  The IAF operates
in terms of an approved audit plan, and focuses on risks identified during the
risk assessment process. The IAF reports are submitted to the Accounting
Officer, the RMC and the AC, and recommendations made by the IAF are
monitored continuously to ensure that any identified control weaknesses are
addressed properly.   

The National Treasury has developed a comprehensive financial manual to
address controls relating to financial matters. 

Internal controls and asset management procedures have been implemented.
Control over assets has been addressed by developing an electronic asset
register and tracking system to enhance the control over all departmental assets. 

Furthermore, as part of its ongoing commitment to improving the control
environment, during the latter part of the 2003/04 financial year, the
Department undertook a review of the general controls pertaining to its
information system environment.  During this review, the Department found
that certain weaknesses existed concerning the information system
environment. Corrective steps have been taken to address these control
weaknesses.
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The National Treasury continuously reviews and enhances its progress to ensure
compliance with the Public Finance Management Act. Enhancements that were
undertaken during the period under review were as follows:
l Review of the AC and the RMC terms of reference; 
l Implementation and communication of the risk management framework; 
l Review of the Fraud Prevention Plan;   
l Initiation of a review of the National Treasury's procurement processes and

related matters to be in line with the Framework for Supply Chain
Management and related regulations; and

l Review of the financial delegations in terms of Section 44 of the Public
Finance Management Act and amendment to support the National Treasury's
structures.

Planned activities for the 2004/05 period are as follows:
l The development of a financial procedural manual; 
l The enhancement of the Risk Management Framework and related matters;

and
l The implementation of a revised Supply Chain Management policy, which

is aligned with the Framework for Supply Chain Management.

10. Performance information

Divisional heads report to the Director-General on a regular basis on progress
made with regard to the programme delivery and measurable objectives as
contained in the National Treasury's strategic plan.  
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Approval

The annual financial statements set out on pages 100 to 151 have been approved by the
Accounting Officer.

Lesetja Kganyago
Director-General: National Treasury
Date: 31 May 2004
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1. AUDIT ASSIGNMENT

The financial statements as set out on pages 100 to 151, for the year ended 31
March 2004, have been audited in terms of section 188 of the Constitution of
the Republic of South Africa, 1996 (Act No. 108 of 1996), read with sections 3
and 5 of the Auditor-General Act, 1995 (Act No. 12 of 1995).  These financial
statements, the maintenance of effective control measures and compliance with
relevant laws and regulations are the responsibility of the accounting officer.
My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements, based
on the audit.

2. NATURE AND SCOPE

The audit was conducted in accordance with Statements of South African
Auditing Standards.  Those standards require that I plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free of material
misstatement.  

An audit includes:
l examining,  on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures

in the financial statements,
l assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by

management, and
l evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

Furthermore, an audit includes an examination, on a test basis, of evidence
supporting compliance in all material respects with the relevant laws and
regulations which came to my attention and are applicable to financial matters.

I believe that the audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. AUDIT OPINION

In my opinion, the financial statements fairly present, in all material respects,
the financial position of the National Treasury at 31 March 2004 and the results
of its operations and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with
prescribed accounting practice and in the manner required by the Public
Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999).

4. EMPHASIS OF MATTER

Without qualifying the audit opinion expressed above, attention is drawn to the
following matter:

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL

TO PARLIAMENT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
VOTE 8 - NATIONAL TREASURY

for the year ended 31 March 2004
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4.1. Control over medical expenditure

In my previous report I identified various weaknesses in the controls
over "Contribution to medical schemes" included in Note 10.1 to the
financial statements. Weaknesses in controls over this expenditure
still existed. In addition to service level agreements not entered into
with major service providers, approved policy and procedure manuals
were not in place and system information was not always supported
by appropriate documentation. The total expenditure relating to med-
ical expenditure amounted to R1 259 073 000.  Alternative audit pro-
cedures were performed to verify the figures in the financial state-
ments.

5. FOLLOW UP OF SCOPA RESOLUTIONS

The Standing Committee on Public Accounts made seven recommendations in
their eighty-second report, 2003. These were all satisfactory resolved by the
department.

6. SPECIAL PENSIONS BOARD

In terms of section 7 of the Special Pensions Act, 1996 (Act No. 69 of 1996) the
Special Pensions Board (SPB) determines who qualifies for benefits and what
benefits they qualify for.  However, in terms of section 9 of the said Act the
department is responsible for the payment of benefits to beneficiaries who
qualify in terms of the said Act.  These payments amounted to R215 129 000
during the year under review (2003: R273 085 000).

The SPB is the accounting authority and is therefore audited separately from the
department.  The validity of the said amounts will therefore be established
during the audit of the financial statements of the SPB and reported on
separately.

7. SECRET SERVICES

Included in Programme 8 of the department's vote is an amount of 
R1 771 265 000 (2003: R1 328 668 000) which has been transferred to the
secret services account in terms of the Secret Services Act, 1978 (Act No. 56 of
1978).  This amount has not been subject to this audit but separate reports on
the Security Services Special Account, established in terms of section 1 of the
Security Services Special Account Act, 1969 (Act No. 81 of 1969), as well as
the departmental Account for Secret Funds regarding money transferred to these
departments in terms of section 2 of the Secret Services Account Act, 1978, will
be tabled in Parliament in due course. 

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL

TO PARLIAMENT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
VOTE 8 - NATIONAL TREASURY

for the year ended 31 March 2004
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8. APPRECIATION

The assistance rendered by the staff of the National Treasury during the audit is
sincerely appreciated.

SA Fakie
Auditor-General

Pretoria
23 July 2004
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NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE 8

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
AND RELATED MATTERS 

for the year ended 31 March 2004

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the following policies,
which have been applied consistently in all material respects, unless otherwise indicated.
However, where appropriate and meaningful, additional information has been disclosed
to enhance the usefulness of the financial statements and to comply with the statutory
requirements of the Public Finance Management Act (1 of 1999) (as amended by Act 29
of 1999), the Treasury Regulations for departments and constitutional institutions issued
in terms of the Act and the Division of Revenue (Act 7 of 2003).

1. Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a modified cash basis of
accounting, except where stated otherwise.  The modified cash basis constitutes
the cash basis of accounting supplemented with additional disclosure items.
Under the cash basis of accounting transactions and other events are recognised
when cash is received or paid.  Under the accrual basis of accounting
transactions and other events are recognised when incurred and not when cash
is received or paid.

2. Revenue

Voted funds are the amounts appropriated to a department in accordance with
the final budget known as the Adjusted Estimates of National Expenditure.
Unexpended voted funds are surrendered to the National Revenue Fund.

Interest and dividends received are recognised on receipt of the funds, and no
accrual is made for interest or dividends receivable from the last receipt date to
the end of the reporting period. They are recognised as revenue in the financial
statements of the Department and then transferred to the National Revenue
Fund.

3. Donor aid

Donor aid is recognised in the income statement in accordance with the cash
basis of accounting.

4. Current expenditure

Current expenditure is recognised in the income statement when the payment is
made.

5. Unauthorised, irregular and fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure

Unauthorised expenditure means:
l the overspending of a vote or a main division within a vote; or
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l expenditure that was not made in accordance with the purpose of a vote or,

in the case of a main division, not in accordance with the purpose of the
main division.

Unauthorised expenditure is treated as a current asset in the balance sheet until
such expenditure is recovered from a third party or funded from future voted
funds.

Irregular expenditure means expenditure, other than unauthorised expenditure,
incurred in contravention of, or not in accordance with, a requirement of any
applicable legislation, including:
l The Public Finance Management Act; and
l The State Tender Board Act, or any regulations made in terms of this Act.

Irregular expenditure is treated as expenditure in the income statement.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure means expenditure that was made in vain
and which would have been avoided had reasonable care been exercised.
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure must be recovered from a responsible
official (a debtor account should be raised), or from the vote if responsibility
cannot be determined.  It is treated as a current asset in the balance sheet until
such expenditure is recovered from the responsible official or funded from
future voted funds.

6. Debts written off

Debts are written off when identified as irrecoverable. Debts written off are
limited to the amount of surplus funds available to the Department. No
provision is made for irrecoverable amounts.

7. Capital expenditure

Expenditure for physical items on hand on 31 March 2004, to be consumed in
the following financial year, is written off in full when the items are paid and
accounted for as expenditure in the income statement.

8. Investments

Non-current investments are shown at cost and adjustments are made only
where, in the opinion of the accounting officer, the investment is impaired.
Where an investment has been impaired, it is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the impairment is identified.

On disposal of an investment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount is charged or credited to the income statement.
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9. Investments in controlled entities

Investments in controlled entities are those entities where the reporting entity
has the ability to exercise any of the following powers to govern the financial
and operating policies of the entity in order to obtain benefits from its activities:
l To appoint or remove all, or the majority of, the members of that entity's

board of directors or equivalent governing body;
l To appoint or remove the entity's chief executive officer;
l To cast all, or the majority of, the votes at meetings of that board of directors

or equivalent governing body; or
l To control all, or the majority of, the voting rights at a general meeting of

that entity.

Investments in controlled entities are shown at cost.

10. Receivables

Receivables are not normally recognised under the cash basis of accounting.
However, receivables included in the balance sheet arise from cash payments
that are recoverable from another party.

Receivables for services delivered are not recognised in the balance sheet as a
current asset or as income in the income statement, as the financial statements
are prepared on a cash basis of accounting, but are disclosed separately as part
of the disclosure notes to enhance the usefulness of the financial statements.

11. Payables

Payables are not normally recognised under the cash basis of accounting.
However, payables included in the balance sheet arise from cash receipts that
are due to the National Revenue Fund or another party.

12. Provisions

A provision is a liability of uncertain timing or amount.  Provisions are not
normally recognised under the cash basis of accounting, but are disclosed
separately as part of the disclosure notes to enhance the usefulness of the
financial statements.

13. Lease commitments

Lease commitments for the period remaining from the reporting date until the
end of the lease contract are disclosed as part of the disclosure notes to the
financial statements.  These commitments are not recognised in the balance
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sheet as a liability or as expenditure in the income statement as the financial
statements are prepared on the cash basis of accounting.

14. Accruals

This amount represents goods/services that have been delivered, but no invoice
has been received from the supplier at the reporting date, or an invoice has been
received but remains unpaid at the reporting date. These amounts are not
recognised in the balance sheet as a liability or as expenditure in the income
statement as the financial statements are prepared on a cash basis of accounting,
but are however disclosed as part of the disclosure notes.

15. Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits 

The cost of short-term employee benefits is expensed in the income statement
in the reporting period when the payment is made.  Short-term employee
benefits, that give rise to a present legal or constructive obligation, are deferred
until they can be reliably measured and then expensed.  Details of these benefits
and the potential liabilities are disclosed as a disclosure note to the financial
statements and are not recognised in the income statement.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised and expensed only when the payment is
made.

Retirement benefits

The Department provides retirement benefits for its employees through a
defined benefit plan for government employees.  These benefits are funded by
both employer and employee contributions.  Employer contributions to the fund
are expensed when money is paid to the fund.  No provision is made for
retirement benefits in the financial statements of the Department.  Any potential
liabilities are disclosed in the financial statements of the National Revenue
Fund and not in the financial statements of the employer department.

Medical benefits

The Department provides medical benefits for its employees.  These benefits
are funded by employer and/or employee contributions.  Employer
contributions to the fund are expensed when money is paid to the fund.  No
provision is made for medical benefits in the financial statements of the
Department.
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Post-retirement medical benefits for retired members are expensed when the
payment is made to the fund.

16. Capitalisation reserve

The capitalisation reserve represents an amount equal to the value of the
investments and/or loans capitalised for the first time in the previous financial
year. On disposal, repayment or recovery, such amounts are transferable to the
National Revenue Fund.

17. Recoverable revenue

Recoverable revenue represents payments made and recognised in the income
statement as an expense in previous years, which have now become recoverable
from a debtor owing to non-performance in accordance with an agreement.
Repayments are transferred to the National Revenue Fund as and when the
repayment is received.

18. Comparative figures

Where necessary, comparative figures have been restated to conform to the
changes in  presentation in the current year. The comparative figures shown in
these financial statements are limited to the figures shown in the previous year's
audited financial statements and such other comparative figures that the
Department may reasonably have available for reporting
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NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE 8

NOTES TO THE APPROPRIATION STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 March 2004

1. Detail of current and capital transfers as per Appropriation
Act (after Virement)

Detail of these transactions can be viewed in note 9 (Transfer Payments) and
Annexure 1A - 1D to the annual financial statements.

2. Detail of specifically and exclusively appropriated amounts
voted (after Virement)

Detail of these transactions can be viewed in note 1 (Annual Appropriation) to
the annual financial statements.

3. Detail of special functions (theft and losses)

Detail of these transactions per programme can be viewed in note 11.3 (Details
of Special Functions (theft and losses)) to the annual financial statements.

4. Explanations of material variances from Amounts Voted
(after Virement)

4.1 Per programme:

Programme 1: Administration
The saving is mainly in respect of personnel and concomitant
expenditure due to the delay in the filling of posts.   The saving on
Professional and Special Services and Equipment, was due to the
extended period in the refurbishing of the 240 Vermeulen Street
Building and expenditure will continue to be incurred in the new
financial year. An amount of R5,9 million is expected to be rolled over
to fund the refurbishment of four additional floors in 240 Vermeulen
Street.

Programme 2: Economic Planning and Budget Management
The saving is mainly in respect of personnel and concomitant
expenditure due to the delay in the filling of posts.  The saving on
Professional and Special Services was due to a decrease in the use of
consultants in this programme.

Programme 3: Asset and Liability Management
The saving is mainly in respect of personnel and concomitant
expenditure due to the delay in the filling of posts. The saving on
Professional and Special Services was due to a decrease in the use of
consultants in this programme and less expenditure on legal costs and
maintenance of systems than expected. An amount of R12,6 million is
expected to be rolled over to review Treasury operations  of  state-
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owned  entities  as  approved  by  the  Minister  (R10 million)  and  to
fund  the  finalisation  of systems development   (R2,6 million).

Programme 4: Financial Management and Systems
The saving is mainly in respect of personnel and concomitant
expenditure due to the delay in the filling of posts. The saving on
Professional and Special Services was due to a decrease in
expenditure for maintenance of systems and the delay in
refurbishment of SITA due to a change in accommodation needs. An
amount of R19,9 million is expected to be rolled over for the
finalisation of the refurbishment of SITA. 

Programme 5: Financial Accounting and Reporting
The saving is mainly in respect of personnel and concomitant
expenditure due to the delay in the filling of posts. The saving on
Professional and Special Services was due to a decrease in
expenditure for advisory and facilitation services.

Programme 6: Provincial and Local Government Transfers
The variance of R45 million on the Local Government Restructuring
Grant is due to a delay in funds transferred to the Mangaung
Municipality that did not meet its 3rd quarter milestone for 2003/04.
This amount is expected to be rolled over to the 2004/05 financial
year.

Programme 7: Civil and Military Pensions
The saving is mainly due to Pensions Administration receiving fewer
medical aid claims and processing less special pension payments.

Programme 8: Fiscal Transfers
National Treasury decided not to purchase additional shares in the
African Development Bank in the current financial year, resulting in
a saving of R44 million.  Further savings occurred due to smaller
transfers to Lesotho and Namibia for Common Monetary Area
payments (R12 million), and smaller payments to SA Contributions to
Highly Indebted Poor Countries (HIPC) due to rand appreciation (R10
million).
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4.2 Per standard item:

Personnel
The saving was mainly due to posts not being filled during the
financial year.  The vacancy rate at 31 March 2004 was approximately
40%.

Administrative
The saving was mainly due to posts not being filled during the
financial year.

Inventories
The saving was mainly due to posts not being filled during the
financial year.

Equipment
The saving was mainly due to lower than anticipated expenditure on
equipment and the extended period of the refurbishment.

Professional and Special Services
The saving was mainly due to a directive by the Budget Council that
the process for the acquisitioning of new systems should be delayed.
This delay was necessary to allow time to complete a coherent
systems renewal strategy and to determine and document
Government's user requirements.  This process was completed at the
end of the 2003/04 financial year and the systems renewal proposals
are currently in the process of being submitted for consideration by
the Budget Council. 

Transfer payments
The saving is attributed to R45 million on the Local Government
Restructuring Grant due to the delay in funds transferred to the
Mangaung Municipality that did not meet its 3rd quarter milestone for
2003/04. National Treasury decided not to purchase additional shares
in the African Development Bank in the current financial year,
resulting in a saving of R44 million. Further savings occured due to
smaller transfers to Lesotho and Namibia for Common Monetary
Area payments  (R12 million), and smaller payments to SA
Contributions to Highly Indebted Poor Countries (HIPC) due to rand
appreciation (R10 million).

Miscellaneous
The saving is mainly due to Pensions Administration receiving fewer
medical aid claims and processing less special pension payments.
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL

TO PARLIAMENT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
THE PROJECT DEVELOPMENT FACILITY

for the year ended 31 March 2004

1. AUDIT ASSIGNMENT

The financial statements as set out on pages 158 to 165, for the period ended 31
March 2004, have been audited in terms of section 188 of the Constitution of
the Republic of South Africa, 1996 (Act No. 108 of 1996), read with sections 3
and 5 of the Auditor-General Act, 1995 (Act No. 12 of 1995).  These financial
statements, the maintenance of effective control measures and compliance with
relevant laws and regulations are the responsibility of the accounting officer.
My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements, based
on the audit.

2. NATURE AND SCOPE

2.1 Audit of financial statements

The audit was conducted in accordance with Statements of South
African Auditing Standards.  Those standards require that I plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance that the financial
statements are free of material misstatement.  

An audit includes:
l examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and

disclosures in the financial statements,
l assessing the accounting principles used and significant esti-

mates made by management, and
l evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

Furthermore, an audit includes an examination, on a test basis, of
evidence supporting compliance in all material respects with the
relevant laws and regulations which came to my attention and are
applicable to financial matters.

I believe that the audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. AUDIT OPINION

In my opinion, the financial statements fairly present, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Project Development Facility at 31 March 2004 and
the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then ended, in
accordance with Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice and in
the manner required by the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1
of 1999).
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL

TO PARLIAMENT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
THE PROJECT DEVELOPMENT FACILITY

for the year ended 31 March 2004

4. APPRECIATION

The assistance rendered by the staff of the Project Development Facility during
the audit is sincerely appreciated.

S Labuschagne
for Auditor-General

Pretoria
30 July 2004
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P R O J E C T  D E V E L O P M E N T
F A C I L I T Y ( P D F ) :  A T R A D I N G

E N T I T Y M A N A G E D  B Y T H E  P P P
U N I T  O F  N A T I O N A L T R E A S U R Y

Annual Financial Statements for the 

period 21 October 2003 to 31 March 2004
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PROJECT DEVELOPMENT FACILITY (PDF)

BALANCE SHEET
at 31 March 2004
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PROJECT DEVELOPMENT FACILITY (PDF)

INCOME STATEMENT
for the period 21 October 2003 to 31 March 2004
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PROJECT DEVELOPMENT FACILITY (PDF)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the period 21 October 2003 to 31 March 2004
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PROJECT DEVELOPMENT FACILITY (PDF)

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the period 21 October 2003 to 31 March 2004
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PROJECT DEVELOPMENT FACILITY (PDF)

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the period 21 October 2003 to 31 March 2004

1. Accounting policy

The annual financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis, and conform, in all
material respects, to South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice.
No modifications were made for measurement of financial instruments to fair value.

The principal accounting policies adopted and applied are set out below.

1.1 Revenue recognition

1.1.1 Government grants for the financing of operating expenditure are those
received from National Treasury, are accounted for as income on the accru-
al basis and are not repayable.

1.1.2 Interest is recognised on a time proportion basis and is therefore recognised
as it accrues.

1.2 Financial instruments

Financial instruments carried on the balance sheet include cash and cashbook bal-
ances, trade creditors and interest receivable.  These instruments are generally car-
ried at their estimated fair value.  The particular recognition methods adopted are
disclosed in the individual notes associated with each item, as set out below.

1.3 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost, which is the fair value. For the pur-
poses of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise deposits
held with banks.

1.4 Comparative figures

As this is the first year of operations, there are no comparative figures.

2. Public sector practices and policies

2.1 Inter-relationship with other government entities

The public entity operates as a trading entity of the National Treasury, within the
South African Government environment.  In line with prevailing government prac-
tices the entity is not obliged to pay for certain expenditure such as office space and
utilisation of moveable assets.
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PROJECT DEVELOPMENT FACILITY (PDF)

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the period 21 October 2003 to 31 March 2004

2.2 Public Finance Management Act reporting requirements

Section 40(3)(b)
No material losses occurred during the current financial year due to criminal conduct
nor any unauthorised expenditure, irregular expenditure, fruitless expenditure or
wasteful expenditure.

6. Contingent liabilities

The unutilised surplus of R 5 886 750 is retained for the funding of Transaction Advisor costs
associated with establishment of selected PPP projects approved for funding during the
course of the Project Development Facility's normal course of operations.  Funding is
disbursed upon the successful achievement of predefined milestones and Treasury
Approvals.  The following PPP projects have been identified for funding:

Commitments arising from future funding of the above identified projects will be financed from
the current unutilised surplus of R 5 886 750 as well as future government grants.
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PROJECT DEVELOPMENT FACILITY (PDF)

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the period 21 October 2003 to 31 March 2004
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PROJECT DEVELOPMENT FACILITY (PDF)

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the period 21 October 2003 to 31 March 2004

11. Taxation

No provision is made for taxation, as the Project Development Facility is exempt from taxation
in terms of Section 10(1)(a) of the Income Tax Act, 1962.
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HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT STATISTICAL REPORT

1.  SERVICE DELIVERY

Service delivery environment 

The National Treasury service delivery environment is contextualised by its aim
to promote economic development, good governance, social progress and to
raise the living standards of South Africa's people. Its policy priorities are
implemented through the Department's eight programmes. Financial and fiscal
reform remains a key outcome of National Treasury activity, with the objective
being to achieve sustainable growth and development; job creation; and poverty
eradication. Ongoing improvements in our budgetary system continue to
enhance transparency and accountability. Reforms in government procurement
and the introduction of a broad-based supply chain policy framework served to
enhance efficiency and meet the Government's black economic empowerment
objectives.

We continue to improve financial management, examples of which are reform
in the formats for financial reporting for national and provincial government,
and to move to a full accrual basis of accounting based on the standards set by
the Accounting Standards Board (ASB). 

Macroeconomic policies

Government's macroeconomic policies aim to meet the challenges of South
Africa's social and economic development in the context of an increasingly
interdependent global environment. This includes deepening South Africa's
financial markets, gradually liberalising exchange controls, improving financial
sector oversight and regulation, enhancing consumer protection and combating
money-laundering and terrorism financing. The National Treasury is actively
engaged in the development of the Southern African region through cooperation
with neighbouring South African Development Communities (SADC) countries
on issues such as taxation, promoting investment and economic integration
within the region.

Intergovernmental fiscal relations

The building of solid intergovernmental financial and fiscal relations system is
important for service delivery and efficiency in government spending. A major
area of progress and development is the National Treasury's relationship with
other spheres of government. New frameworks for the allocation of grants to
provinces and local government provide sharper definitions of the purpose and
intended outputs for each grant. This enhances transparency and is expected to
lead to further improvements in service delivery. The ongoing evolution of the
system of intergovernmental fiscal relations will be achieved at provincial and
local levels by rationalising grants to ensure that there are fewer, but better
administered, grants. With the turnaround in provincial infrastructure
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investment, the main focus over the medium term will be to use infrastructure
delivery to accomplish other government objectives. More specifically, the
priority will be to facilitate employment through labour-based and labour-
intensive projects. In addition, future initiatives will focus on institutionalising
good practices in relation to infrastructure planning, supply chain management
(procurement) and delivery.

At local government level, the priority will be to reinforce budget reform and
financial management. Building on the solid legal foundation that will have
been laid by the Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA), targeted
support will be provided to municipalities to improve their financial
management capacity and to strengthen the link between policy, planning and
budgets. These reforms have been piloted in selected municipalities and are
being rolled out countrywide over the medium term. This will ensure even
greater transparency in resource allocation and reporting, and will, over time,
further enhance accountability and service delivery.

Implementing the PFMA

The successful implementation of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA)
since 2000 lays a solid foundation for the roll-out of the MFMA in 2004. The
MFMA, which seeks to introduce similar financial management reforms at
local government level, will be launched in all provinces in 2004. Both the
PFMA and the MFMA are key elements in transforming public sector financial
management and are important National Treasury objectives. 

Over the next few years, the Treasury will be commissioning high-quality short
courses for all government officials to build the necessary capacity to
implement the Acts effectively. It is rolling out financial management systems,
which will ensure not only the transparency of expenditure, but also the
effective and efficient use of scarce resources to achieve social transformation.
These systems for enhancing the integrity and effectiveness of supply-chain and
expenditure management are part of PFMA implementation and have been
among National Treasury's most important reforms.

Appropriate tax policies

Reviewing the taxation of retirement savings, introducing a mining royalty tax,
considering tax measures to support investment and enhancing revenue-
estimation capacity form part of the development of appropriate tax policies for
the country.

The South African Revenue Service (SARS), a public entity reporting to the
Minister of Finance, has consistently exceeded its revenue targets and has been
highly efficient and effective in its revenue collection. It has introduced
electronic filing and payments, implemented a capital gains tax, changed
taxation from source-based to residence-based, and also developed a risk
management approach to compliance, with emphasis on measuring the tax gap
and identifying high-yield strategies.
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Managing public sector debt

Another priority for National Treasury is the prudent management of
Government's financial assets and liabilities, including the domestic and foreign
debt portfolios. Since 1999, the debt management strategy has evolved from
strategic debt management, where the primary focus was on access to capital
markets and the maintenance of a balanced maturity profile. The focus has
shifted to active debt management, where Government's borrowing requirement
is financed at the lowest possible cost within acceptable levels of risk. Strategies
are in place to meet Government's borrowing requirement over the medium
term. In addition, the Treasury is also improving its cash management
processes, enabling it to use surplus cash from the provinces. This strategy has
a positive impact on Government's cost of financing.



Annual Report 2003/2004169

2. EXPENDITURE

Personnel costs by programme, 2003/04
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Personnel costs by salary bands, 2003/04
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Salaries, overtime, home owners allowance and medical aid by programme, 2003/04
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Salaries, overtime, home owners allowance and medical aid by salary bands, 2003/04 

3. EMPLOYMENT AND VACANCIES

Employment and vacancies by programme, 31 March 2004
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Employment and vacancies by salary bands, 31 March 2004 
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4. JOB EVALUATION

Job evaluation, 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004

Profile of employees whose salary positions were upgraded due to their posts being
upgraded, 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004

Employees whose salary levels exceeded the grade determined by job evaluation, 1 April
2003 to 31 March 2004 (in terms of PSR 1.V.C.3)
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Profile of employees whose salary levels exceeded the grade determined by job
evaluation, 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004 (in terms of PSR 1.V.C.3)

5. EMPLOYMENT CHANGES

Annual turnover rates by salary band for the period 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004
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Reasons for staff leaving the Department 
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Promotions by salary band
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6. EMPLOYMENT EQUITY

Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of the
following occupational categories at 31 March 2004
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Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of the
following occupational bands at 31 March 2004
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Recruitment for the period 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004
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Promotions for the period 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004

Terminations for the period 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004
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Skills development for the period 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004

Disciplinary action for the period 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004
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7. PERFORMANCE REWARDS

Performance Rewards by race, gender and disability, 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004 

Performance Rewards by salary bands for personnel below Senior Management Service,
1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004
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Performance-related rewards (cash bonus) by salary band for Senior Management Service,
1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004

8. FOREIGN WORKERS

Foreign workers by salary band, 1 April 2002 to 31 March 2003

Foreign workers by major occupation, 1 April 2002 to 31 March 2003
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9. LEAVE UTILISATION FOR THE PERIOD 1 JANUARY 2003 TO 31 DECEMBER 2003

Sick leave, 1 January 2003 to 31 December 2003 

Disability leave (temporary and permanent), 1 January 2003 to 31 December 2003 
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Annual leave, 1 January 2003 to 31 December 2003

Capped leave, 1 January 2003 to 31 December 2003
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Leave payouts for the period 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004

10. HIV/AIDS AND HEALTH PROMOTION PROGRAMMES

Steps taken to reduce the risk of occupational exposure

Details of Health Promotion and HIV/AIDS Programmes
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Details of Health Promotion and HIV/AIDS Programmes (continued)
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11. LABOUR RELATIONS

Collective agreements, 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004

Misconduct and disciplinary hearings finalised, 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004

If there were no disciplinary hearings, then use the following table

Grievances lodged for the period 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004

Disputes lodged with Councils for the period 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004

Strike actions for the period 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004
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Precautionary suspensions for the period 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004

12. SKILLS DEVELOPMENT

Training needs identified, 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004
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Training provided, 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004
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13. INJURED ON DUTY

Injured on duty, 1 April 2003 to 31 March 2004

14. UTILISATION OF CONSULTANTS 
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Analysis of consultant appointments using appropriated funds, in terms of Historically
Disadvantaged Individuals (HDIs)



National Treasury 196

Report on consultant appointments using donor funds
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Analysis of consultant appointments using donor funds, in terms of historically
disadvantaged individuals (HDIs)
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Annexure 1: Abbreviations

ACCC Anti-Corruption Coordinating Committee
ADB African Development Bank
ADF African Development Fund
AFIS Automated Fingerprint Identification System
APRM African Peer Review Mechanism
ASB Accounting Standards Board
AU African Union
BAS Basic Accounting System
BIS Bank for International Settlements
CFTC Commonwealth Fund for Technical Cooperation
CGE Compatable General Equilibrium
CISNA Securities and Non-banking Financial Authorities
CMU Contract Management Unit
CMA Common Monetary Area
CPD Corporation for Public Deposits
DBSA Development Bank of Southern Africa
DCIS Development Corporation Information System
DOC Department of Communications
DPE Department of Public Enterprises
DPSA Department of Public Service and Administration
ED Exposure Drafts
EU European Union
FATF Financial Action Task Force
FFC Financial and Fiscal Commission
FIC Financial Intelligence Centre
FMS Financial Management System
FOSAD Forum of SA Directors-General
FSB Financial Services Board
G20 Group of Twenty Countries
G24 Group of Twenty-Four Countries
GAMAP Generally Accepted Municipal Accounting Practices
GCC Guarantee Certification Committee
GCIS Government Communications and Information System
GDS Growth and Development Summit
GEPF Government Employee Pension Fund
GFECRA Gold and Foreign Exchange Contingency Reserve Account
GRAP Generally Recognised Accounting Practices
HDI Historically Disadvantaged Individual
HEDCOM Heads of Education Departments Committee
HIPC Highly Indebted Poor Countries
HSRC Human Sciences Research Council
IAS International Accounting Standards

ANNEXURES
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IDC International Development Cooperation
IFAC International Federation of Accountants
IFMS Integrated Financial Management Systems
IJS Integrated Justice Sector
ILP Inflation linked bond
IMF International Monetary Fund
IMFC International Monetary and Financial Committee
IOSCO International Organization of Securities Commissions
IPFA Institute for Public Finance and Auditing
IPSAS International Public Sector Accounting Standards
ISDA International Swaps and Derivatives Association
LRAD Land Reform for Agricultural Development
MFI Micro-Finance Intermediaries
MFMA Municipal Financial Management Act
MFMTAP Municipal Finance Management Technical Assistance Project
MOU Memorandum of Understanding
MSP Master Systems Plan
MTEF Medium-Term Expenditure Framework
NCOP National Council of Provinces
NEDLAC National Economic Development and Labour Council
NEPAD New Partnership for Africa's Development
NIA National Intelligence Agency
NOFP Net Open Forward Position
NPA National Ports Authority
OAG Office of the Auditor-General
PIC Public Investment Commissioners
PFAI Provident Fund for Associated Institutions
PFMA Public Finance Management Act
PPP Public-Private Partnerships
PPPFA Preferential Procurement Policy Act
RDP Reconstruction and Development Programme
RISDP Regional Indicative Strategic Development Plan
RMF Risk Management Framework
SACU Southern African Customs Union
SADC Southern African Development Community
SAFCOL SA Forestry Company Limited
SAPS South African Police Services
SAPO South African Post Office
SARB South African Reserve Bank
SARS South African Revenue Service
SASRIA South African Special Risks Insurance Association
SCM Supply Chain Management
SCOA Standard Chart of Accounts
SETA Sector Education and Training Authority
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SITA State Information Technology Agency
SCOPA Standing Committee on Public Accounts 
SMMEs Small, Medium and Micro-Enterprises
SOEs State-owned Enterprises
STRIPS Separate Trading of Registered Interest and Principal Securities
WTO World Trade Organisation
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Annexure 2: Institutions associated with the National Treasury

The National Treasury works closely with a number of public institutions. They have
operational and institutional independence and, in some instances, constitutionally-
guaranteed autonomy. They produce their own annual reports.

Accounting Standards Board
Section 87 of the Public Finance Management Act (1 of 1999)
Coin Liabilities
SA Reserve Bank subsidiary
Corporation for Public Deposits
Corporation for Public Deposits Act (46 of 1984)
Development Bank of Southern Africa
Development Bank of Southern Africa Act (13 of 1997)
Financial and Fiscal Commission
Financial and Fiscal Commission Act (99 of1997)
Financial Services Board
Financial Services Board Act (97 of 1990)
The following report to it:
Pension Fund
Financial Markets Advisory Board
Pension Funds Advisory Board
Financial Intelligence Centre 
Financial Intelligence Centre Act (38 of 2001)
Independent Development Trust
Public Accounts and Auditors Board
Policy Board for Financial Services Regulation
Policy Board for Financial Services and Regulation Act (141 of 1993)
Public Investment Commissioners
Public Commissioners Investment Act (45 of 1984)
Registrar of Banks
Reports to SA Reserve Bank
SA Banknote Company
SA Reserve Bank subsidiary
SA Mint Company
SA Reserve Bank subsidiary
South African Reserve Bank
SA Reserve Bank Act (90 of 1989)
South African Revenue Services
SA Revenue Service Act (34 of 1997)
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South African Special Risk Insurance Association (SASRIA)
Special Pensions Board
Special Pension Advisory Board
State Tender Board
Statistical Council
Statistics Act (66 of 1976)
Tax Advisory Committee
Tax (Katz) Commission
Unit Trusts Advisory
Advisory Committee on short-term insurance


